
BAREFOOT BAY
RECREATION DISTRICT

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting
September 28, 2021 at 7:00 PM

Building D&E

Agenda
Please turn off all cell phones

1. Thought of the Day

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

3. Roll Call

4. Presentations and Proclamations

5. Approval of Minutes

 A. Minutes dated September 10, 2021

6. Treasurer’s Report

 A. Treasurer’s Report

7. Audience Participation

8. Unfinished Business

 A. Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions

 B. Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease

9. New Business

 A. Rules for the BOT Amendment

 B. ADA Lifts for Pools Proposal

 C. Building A Renovations Project: Change Order #14 Confirmation

 D. Lease Agreement with Brevard County (Utility Services Department)

 E. FY21 Budget Amendment - Change Order 13 to the Building A Renovations Project

 F. FY21 Budget Amendment - Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts.

 G. FY22 Budget Amendment - Employee Health and Ancillary Insurance Plans Savings Allocations

 H. FY22 Budget Amendment - Liability and Workers’ Compensation Insurance Plans Savings 
Allocations

 I. FY22 Budget Amendment: Audio-Visual Tech Position Reorganization

 J. 2022 BOT and Quarterly Townhall Regular Meeting Schedule

Page 1 of 122



10. Manager’s Report

 A. Sept. 28, 2021 Comm. Mgr. Report

11. Attorney’s Report

12. Incidental Trustee Remarks

13. Adjournment

If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at 
this meeting, a record of the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim 
transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based 
(FS 286.0105). Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting

Page 2 of 122



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

1 | P a g e  

 

 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

September 10, 2021 

         1PM –Building D&E 

 

Meeting Called to Order                                                                       

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees held a Meeting on September 10, 2021, Building D&E 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Maino called the meeting to order at 1PM. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

Led by Mr. Amoss. 

 

Roll Call  

Present: Mr. Grunow, Mr. Nugent, Mr. Morrissey, Mr. Amoss, Mr. Maino. Also, present, John W. Coffey, ICMA-

CM, Community Manager, Stephanie Brown, District Clerk, Charles Henley, Finance Manager, Rich Armington, 

Resident Relations Manager and Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager. 

 

Presentations and Proclamations  

Chairman Maino presented the Patriots Day Proclamation and 5-year Service Award to Sally-Ann Biondolillo. 
 
Approval of Minutes  

Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve minutes dated August 24, 2021. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

Treasurer’s Report  
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve the Treasurer’s Report for September 10, 2021, as read. Second by Mr. 

Morrissey. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Audience Participation 
Sue and Dennis Proper-749 Lark Drive-spoke in favor of expediting the violations against 750 Lark Drive. 

 
James Filipi-748 Lark Drive-spoke in favor of expediting the violations against 750 Lark Drive. 
 
Jeanne Osborne-100 Cherokee Court-congratulated the BOT and staff regarding the prosperous fiscal year and 
paid her respects to Jack Reddy. 
 
Richard Schwatlow-636 Marlin Circle-voiced his concern regarding the purchase of the restroom trailer bypassing 
the spending cap process. Mr. Repperger clarified the spending cap process, criteria and that the current 
purchase is considered to be a replacement, not a new project. 

 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 122



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

2 | P a g e  

 

 
 
Unfinished Business  

 
Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions  
 
Mr. Coffey explained the temporary 30-day 1 person per golf cart rule at the Golf Course. Mr. Maino spoke in 
favor of the temporary rule. 
 
BOT consensus to not impose any restrictions at this time and revisit at the next BOT meeting. 
 
Shopping Center Electrical Upgrades Approval of Agreement 
 
Approve Chairman Maino's execution of the draft proposed Agreement with Current Electrical Solutions, Inc.   
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to approve Chairman Maino's execution of the draft proposed Agreement with 
Current Electrical Solutions, Inc. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease 
 
Mr. Repperger made a request per Steward Health Care System, LLC Deputy General Counsel Pavan Parikh to the 
BOT to table this agenda item until the September 28, 2021, BOT Meeting. 
 
Mr. Amoss made a motion to table agenda item to the September 28, 2021, BOT Meeting. Second by Mr. 
Morrissey. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
New Business 
 
DOR Violation 21-001596 750 Lark Drive (Vehicle Violations)  
 

Mr. Nugent made a motion to refer case #21-001596 750 Lark Drive to General Counsel Repperger for legal 
action, equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce 
DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien. Second 
by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
DOR Violation 21-001867 750 Lark Drive (Lawn and Landscape) 
 

Mr. Nugent made a motion to refer case #21-001867 750 Lark Drive to General Counsel Repperger for legal 
action, equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce 
DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien. Second 
by Mr. Morrissey. Motion passed. 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 122



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

3 | P a g e  

 

 
DOR Violation 21-001516 750 Lark Drive (Condition of Property (C) Unauthorized items)  
 

Mr. Grunow made a motion to refer case #21-001516 750 Lark Drive to General Counsel Repperger for legal 
action, equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce 
DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien. Second 
by Mr. Amoss. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Mr. Maino spoke in favor of case #21-001516 going to the top of Mr. Repperger’s list. Mr. Repperger stated that 
the BOT cannot address individual behavior or conflict between neighbors/homeowners. 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion for Mr. Repperger to make violation 21-001516 his top priority. Second by Morrissey. 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
“Color Our World Cancer Free” Request for Waiver of Guest Passes for Participants to Access Pavilion  
 
Staff recommends the BOT waive the guest pass requirement at Pool #1 area for Color Our World Cancer Free  
participants on October 16, 2021, from 8am to Noon so they can access the Pavilion area. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to waive the guest pass requirement at Pool #1 area for Color Our World Cancer 
Free participants on October 16, 2021, from 8am to Noon so they can access the Pavilion area. Second by Mr. 
Amoss. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts Award of Contract  
 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract to Portable Restroom Trailers LLC in the amount of $57,970.00 plus  
delivery for a three station (one handicap and two regular) hydraulic drop restroom trailer. 
 
Mr. Grunow and Mr. Maino spoke in favor of the restroom trailer. Mr. Morrissey asked about a less costly option 
for $37,000. Mr. Coffey responded that the $37,000 model only had 1 restroom. Mr. Amoss asked if the trailer 
could be moved for special events. Mr. Coffey responded that the restroom trailer could be moved short 
distances. 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to award contract to Portable Restroom Trailers LLC in the amount of $57,970.00 plus  
delivery for a three station (one handicap and two regular) hydraulic drop restroom trailer. Second by Mr. 
Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Community Center Electrical Repairs Confirmation  
 
Staff recommends the BOT confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Complete Electric, Inc.’s bid in the  
amount of $20,960.00 for electrical repairs at the Community Center, waiving the second bid requirement.  
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Complete Electric, Inc.’s bid in the  
amount of $20,960.00 for electrical repairs at the Community Center, waiving the second bid requirement. Second 
by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed unanimously. 

Page 5 of 122



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

4 | P a g e  

 

 
 
Building A Renovations Project: Change Order #13 Confirmation  
 
Staff recommends the BOT confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Change Order #13 in the amount of  
$34,292.13 for installation of a kitchen hood exhaust pipes platform to Parkit Construction, Inc. 
 
Mr. Amoss made a motion to confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Change Order #13 in the amount of  
$34,292.13 for installation of a kitchen hood exhaust pipes platform to Parkit Construction, Inc. Second by Mr. 
Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
FY22 Employee Pay and Classification Plan 
 
Resolution 2021-14 Read by Mr. Repperger: 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT SUPERSEDING AND REPLACING RESOLUTION 2019-
17 AND ADOPTING AN EMPLOYEE PAY AND CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT WITH OTHER PROVISIONS; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Mr. Maino asked various questions regarding the classification plan. Mr. Coffey provided clarification on what 
grade, minimum, mid-range and maximum is and how it is determined. 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-14 as read. Second by Mr. Morrissey. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
FY23 Budget Preparation Calendar  
 
Staff requests the BOT pick from the many possible openings for the various workshops and then adopt the FY23  
Budget Preparation Calendar.  
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion for the Townhall Meeting to be held on January 18, 2022, and FY23 Budget 
Workshops dates of Monday, March 14, 2020, at 7pm, Thursday, March 24, 2022, at 7pm, Tuesday May 3, 2022, 
at 10am, and Thursday, May 5, 2022, at 7pm. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
FY21 Audit Planning Communications Letter  
 
Staff recommends the BOT acknowledge receipt of the Audit Planning Communications. 
 
Mr. Amoss made a motion to acknowledge receipt of the Audit Planning Communications. Second by Mr. 
Morrissey. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 122



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

5 | P a g e  

 

 
 
Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Purchase Confirmation: 333 Papaya Circle  
 
Staff recommends the BOT confirms the purchase of 333 Papaya Circle via the Neighborhood Revitalization 
Program. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to confirm the purchase of 333 Papaya Circle via the Neighborhood Revitalization 
Program. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Purchase Confirmation: 401 Raven Drive 
 
Staff recommends the BOT confirm the purchase of 401 Raven Drive via the Neighborhood Revitalization 
Program. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to confirm the purchase of 401 Raven Drive via the Neighborhood Revitalization 
Program. Second by Mr. Amoss. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Manager’s Report 
 
Resident Relations 
ARCC Meeting 08/31/2021  

• 3 old business permits: 2 extensions approved and 1 tabled again (permit package is still incomplete) 

• 8 consent permits: all approved 

• 4 other permits: 3 approved and 1 denied  
 
Next ARCC Meeting 09/14/2021  

• Will be held in Building D/E at 9am 
 
Violations Committee Meeting 08/27/2021  

• 6 cases came into compliance prior to the meeting 

• 5 cases presented and found in violation 
 
Next Violations Committee Meeting 

• Scheduled for September 10th in Bldg. D/E at 10am 
 

August Interesting Facts 

• 27 home sales 

• 20 orientations presented 

• 32 residents in attendance 
 

 
 

Page 7 of 122



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

6 | P a g e  

 

Food & Beverage 
Great October events.  Save the dates! 

• Saturday October 2, 2021 
o The German Club and Paradise Planners are holding an Oktoberfest in the Pool #1 area starting 

at noon.  
o An International Polka Band will perform on the Lakeside Stage from 12:30 -4:00pm.   
o Paradise Planners will transform the area into a fairy tale German v illage.   
o Kegs of Warsteiner beer, a favorite of our Barefoot Bay German Club residents, will be flowing 

as well as brats, German potato salad, hot dogs, big pretzels, and more.   
o Tickets nor badges are required for this event.   
 

• October 16, 2021 
o This year’s annual walk for cancer is themed “Color My World Cancer Free” and is a fundraiser 

for all cancers.   
o The walk will be held under the oaks by the New Administration Building at 9am.  Sign up is 

going on now in the CVO office.   
o There will be music, a special drink menu, snacks, and activities in the Pavilion area after the 

walk.  BBRD Departments have a friendly competition to see who can raise the most funds for 
the charity.  While the District collectively raised over $5,000 of the $14,000 raised for the Sea 
of Pink cause in 2019, the Administration team beat out the other Departments by raising over 
$4,000.  We’ll see which Department can raise the bar this year.   

 
Property Services 

• Patched wash out area at the ABM worksite, larger more extensive repair coming soon 

• Replaced 5 interior lights at the Shopping Center 

• Replaced some damaged white bollards 

• Re installed sound panels, cleaned the building, and buffed out the floors prior to re-opening of the assembly 
room 

• Removed old office walls in the new CVO office 

• Replaced the pitcher pump at the pier  

• Replaced door closure assembly at the Pro Shop 

• Cleaned out the gutters at the Pro Shop 

• Re surfaced the Boccie ball courts in preparation of the upcoming winter season 

• Installed new lights on the palms at US1 

• Re-finished the flagpole at the Veteran’s monument  

• Ordered replacement ceiling fans for the Pro Shop men’s room  

• Rototilled the Softball infield  

• Re-worked the TuTu walking trail and rolled it out  

• Investigated issues with the AC at the Pro Shop 

• Investigated and repaired leak in the men’s room in Building D/E  

• Began ordering materials for the refurbishment of Building D/E restrooms  

• Continued to solicit bids for upcoming projects 
 

 

Page 8 of 122



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

7 | P a g e  

 

 

Golf-Pro Shop 

• End of Fiscal Year Inventory 

o Merchandise sales inside the Pro Shop will cease at 12pm on September 30 th for annual BBRD 
inventory management 
 

General Information 

• COVID-19 Precautions Update  – Staff has resumed nightly disinfectant fogging of all assembly and 

Food & Beverage buildings. Residents are urged to follow their own precautions as dictated by 

their individual health and risk situations.  

• November 2021 Voting Location  – The Supervisor of Elections (SoE) has decided to keep the 

upcoming voting site for Precinct #304 at Building D/E. Hence, the “D” side of the building will be 

unavailable for club/residents’ use the week prior to the election to securely store SoE equipm ent.  

o The BOT regularly scheduled meeting for Tuesday, October 26 th will be held in Building A at 

7pm.  

o The BOT townhall meeting, originally scheduled for Thursday, October 28 th at 9am, will now be 

held in in Building A on the same date starting at 7pm.  

• FY22 R&M/Capital Projects  Scheduling – Per staff’s custom, the new fiscal year’s projects were 

added to the September project tracker distributed to the Trustees before the start of the 

meeting. Due to the anticipated continued disruptions to supply chains (anticipated to continue 

until at least next summer) some projects have “TBD” for delivery and/or execution dates.  

• Pool ADA Lifts Update  - Staff is currently reviewing a proposal from BBRD’s Pools Services vendor 

for installation of new lifts (one at each pool) and (if the proposal is found to be adequate) will 

place the approximate $42,000 proposal on the September 28, 2021, BOT meeting agenda for 

consideration.  Additionally, the proposal will be forwarded to the Trustees early next week as a 

read ahead. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 122



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

8 | P a g e  

 

 
Attorney’s Report 
 
Mr. Repperger stated that he sent a memo to the BOT regarding the decision made on the initial restroom trailer 
project in 2015.  He also stated that the proposed BOT term limits had been sent to bill drafting and is on the 
schedule for the September 29, 2021, delegation meeting. Mr. Repperger gave an update on the Blissful Things 
case, and stated that he will have an update on the beach restroom pilings on the September 28, 2021. 
 
Incidental Trustee Remarks 
 
Mr. Grunow stated that it was good meeting and consider coming to the 9/11 memorial service. 
 
Mr. Morrissey thanked staff for creating the speeding in Barefoot Bay list. 
 
Mr. Amoss thank staff and cautioned residents to stop feeding the wild birds. 
 
Mr. Maino reminded residents of the 9/11 Memorial Service. 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 

The next meeting will be on September 28, 2021, at 7pm in Building D/E. 

Mr. Amoss made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Maino adjourned. 

Meeting adjourned at 2:35pm. 

  
 
 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

         Jeff Grunow, Secretary         Stephanie Brown, District Clerk 

 

Page 10 of 122



Total Petty Cash: 2,500.00$                    

314,708.67                 

314,708.67                 

1,350,681.90              

699,810.67                 

2,050,492.57              

2,367,701.24$     

 $                 55,852.63 

                                   -   

                                   -   

55,852.63$           

Expenditures for 9/2/21 - 9/20/21
Check 

Number Vendor Description Check Amount

57677 ABM Landscape & Turf Services Golf Course & Ball Field Maint. - 9/21 38,955.02                        

57691 MGM Contracting, Inc Final Payment for Bldg A Towers Roof Replacement 6,075.00                          

57723 Parkit Construction, Inc. Pay Request #8 Building A Reno 44,465.81                        
57749 EGIS Insurance Advisors, LLC FY22 Workers Comp & Business Liability Insurance 146,153.01                     

57759 Health First Health Plans Inc Employee Health Insurance: 10/21 29,619.58                        

57779 Tropical Demolition Demolition and removal of 333 Papaya Cir 5,450.00                          

210903 Florida Department of Revenue Sales Tax: 8/21 7,543.40                          

PayChex Payroll Taxes -  for the pay period ending Aug 29, 2021 16,049.92                        

United States Treasury Payroll Taxes -  for the pay period ending Sep 12, 2021 16,618.62                        

PayChex Net Payroll for the pay period ending Sep 12, 2021 57,948.31                        

368,878.67$         

70,536.02$           

439,414.69$         Total Expenditures:

Expenditures under $5,000:

Total Deposits Received:

Total Expenditures $5,000 and above:

MB&T Money Market Account

Interest Received: Money Market Account

Interest Received: SBA Account

Interest Received: Other Interest

Barefoot Bay Recreation District
Treasurer's Report
September 28, 2021

Total Cash Balances in General Fund:

Assessments Received:

Daily Deposits:

Petty Cash

Cash Balances in General Fund as of 9/20/21

Operating Cash in Banks
MB&T Operating Account

Total Operating Accounts:

Interest Bearing Accounts

SBA Reserve Account

Total Interest Bearing Accounts:

Total Daily Deposits and Assessments Received for 9/2/21 - 9/20/21

Page 1

Page 11 of 122



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions
Section & Item: 8.A
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: TBD
Contact: John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments:
Reviewed by General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Assessment of current conditions and consideration of possible new COVID-19 precautions.
 

Background and Summary Information
BBRD lifted the last COVID-19 restriction on July 1, 2021. In late July, the CDC issued additional guidance concerning 
facial coverings. On the August 13, 2021, the BOT decided to assess conditions and discuss possible precautions at each 
meeting going forward.
 
On September 10, 2021, staff implemented a 30 day “one-rider per cart” rule for the Golf Course in response to an 
uptick in positive cases in BBRD and players’ concerns.
 
Staff requests direction from the BOT regarding this matter.
 
 
 

Page 12 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease
Section & 
Item:

8.B

Department: Administration
Fiscal 
Impact:

Rental Max $20,000.00 annually Initial Term/$25,000.00 annually, each 
of two (2) Renewal Terms.

Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W Coffey, ICMA-
CM, Community Manager

Attachments
:

Draft Ground Lease Agreement BBRD and Steward Medical Group, 
Exhibit A Legal Description for Ground Lease with Parcel Sketch, Exhibit B 
Conceptual Site Plan Steward Medical Group Land Lease, Executed LOI 
December 3, 2020 Ground Lease Steward Medical Group-BBRD

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Approve Commercial Ground Lease with Steward Medical Group.
 

Background and Summary Information
BOT executed a Letter of Intent with Steward Medical Group on December 4, 2020.
 
General Counsel investigated and resolved issues regarding designation of Subject Property as a “park parcel” 
pursuant to prior Resolution 97-1 during Spring of 2021.
 
Resolution of the issue required the repeal of Resolution 97-1, which was approved August 13, 2021.

Page 13 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 1 of 32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP 
AND 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 
 

  

Page 14 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 2 of 32 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE 1.  LEASE AGREEMENT, TERM, RENEWAL, AND RENTAL ................................................................. 4 
 SECTION 101.  PROPERTY 
 SECTION 102.  TERM AND RENEWAL 
  SUBSECTION 102.1  TERM OF LEASE 
  SUBSECTION 102.2  OPTION TO RENEW 
 SECTION 103.  USE OF PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.1.  IMPROVEMENTS TO PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.2.  DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.3   PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 
 SECTION 104.  BASE RENT AND ADJUSTMENTS 
  SUBSECTION 104.1  BASE RENT 
  SUBSECTION 104.2  ADDITIONAL RENT FOR AD VALOREM TAXES 
  
 SECTION 105.  DELINQUENT PAYMENTS 
 
ARTICLE 2:  BBRD AND TENANT OBLIGATIONS  ................................................................................................. 8 
 SECTION 201.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS 
 SECTION 202.  REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS 
 SECTION 203.  UTILITIES AND SITE ACCESS 
 SECTION 204.  UTILITY CHARGES 
 SECTION 205.  ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS 
 SECTION 206.  FAILURE OF TENANT TO COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION 
 SECTION 207.  ADDITIONAL COVENANTS, WARRANTIES & REPRESENTATIONS  OF BBRD 
 SECTION 208.  SIGNS 
 SECTION 209.    EXCLUSIVITY   
 
ARTICLE 3:  TAXES      ............................................................................................... 11 
 SECTION 301.  AD VALOREM TAXES 
 SECTION 302.  SOLID WASTE FEES 
 SECTION 303.  STORM WATER FEES 
 SECTION 304.  EMERGENCY AMBULANCE/EMS FEES 
 SECTION 305.  OTHER TAXES AND FEES 
  
ARTICLE 4:  INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY   ..........................................................................................12 
 SECTION 401.  LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 SECTION 402.  PROPERTY INSURANCE 
 SECTION 403.  INSURANCE CERTIFICATES 
 SECTION 404.  ADDITIONAL INSURANCE 
 SECTION 405.  COMPLIANCE 
 SECTION 406.  RIGHT TO EXAMINE 
 SECTION 407.  PERSONAL PROPERTY 
 SECTION 408.  INDEMNIFICATION 
 
ARTICLE 5:  PREVENTION OF USE OF THE PROPERTY ........................................................................................ 15 
 
ARTICLE 6:  DEFAULT  BY TENANT    ............................................................................................... 16 
 
ARTICLE 7:        DEFAULT BY BBRD      ............................................................................................... 16 
 
ARTICLE 8:  REAL ESTATE COMMISSION    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 9:  IDENTITY OF INTEREST    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 10:  NOTICES AND REPORTS    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 11:  MEMORANDUM OF LEASE     .............................................................................................. 18 
 
ARTICLE 12:  ENTRY OF BBRD      .............................................................................................. 18 
 

Page 15 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 3 of 32 

ARTICLE 13  LEASE EXPIRATION     ............................................................................................... 18  
 
ARTICLE 14:  QUIET ENJOYMENT     ............................................................................................... 19 
 
ARTICLE 15:  BBRD POLICIES      ............................................................................................... 19 
 
ARTICLE 16:  NONDISCRIMINATION    ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 17:  WARRANTIES     ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 18:  ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING   ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 19:  ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND INDEMNIFICATION ........................................... 21 
 SECTION 1901.  ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS BY TENANT 
 SECTION 1902.  ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNIFICATION BY TENANT 
 
ARTICLE 20:  MORTGAGE INTEREST    ............................................................................................... 21 
 
ARTICLE 21:  ATTORNEYS FEES     ............................................................................................... 26 
 
ARTICLE 22:  OTHER PROVISIONS    ..........................................................................................27 
 SECTION 2201. REASONABLE AND GOOD FAITH 
 SECTION 2202. FORCE MAJEURE 
 SECTION 2203. HEADINGS 
 SECTION 2204. BINDING EFFECT 
 SECTION 2205. RIGHTS RESERVED 
 SECTION 2206. NO WAIVER 
 SECTION 2207. SEVERABILITY 
 SECTION 2208. INTERPRETATION OF AGREEMENT 
 SECTION 2209. NO AGENCY 
 SECTION 2210. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 SECTION 2211. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT 
 
 
EXHIBIT A:  DESCRIPTION OF LEASE PROPERTY   ............................................................................................... 31 
 
EXHIBIT B:  TENANT CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN  ............................................................................................... 32 
 
 

Page 16 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 4 of 32 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the “Lease” or “Agreement”), made and entered 

into this                       day of                            , 2021, by and between BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT, an independent special district of the State of Florida, having its principal office and place of business 

at 625 Barefoot Blvd., Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 (“BBRD” or “District”) and STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP c/o 

STEWARD HEALTH CARE SYSTEM, LLC, a corporate entity, maintaining its principal office and place of 

business at 1900 Pearl Street, Suite 2400, Dallas, Texas 75201 ("Tenant"). 

 
WITNESSETH THAT: 

 
 WHEREAS, BBRD has the exclusive right and power to lease certain Property (as herein defined) located 

in the County of Brevard, State of Florida; and, 

 WHEREAS, BBRD desires to lease to Tenant, and Tenant desires to lease from BBRD, the Property 

upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, terms and conditions herein set forth, 

the parties have agreed and do agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1 

LEASE AGREEMENT, TERM, RENEWAL, AND RENTAL 
 

 SECTION 101: PROPERTY.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth hereinafter, BBRD leases 

hereby to Tenant and Tenant rents hereby from BBRD, the property described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the 

"Property"), consisting of approximately .51 acres.   Exhibit A consists of both a survey sketch and legal description 

of the Property.  A copy of Tenant’s Conceptual Site Plan Aerial Illustration is attached hereto as Exhibit B 

(“Conceptual Site Plan”) and is incorporated herein by reference.  The Parties agree that this Agreement shall be 

amended to incorporate and replace the Conceptual Site Plan in Exhibit B with a copy of the Actual Site Plan (“Actual 

Site Plan”) to be submitted by Tenant to the Board of County Commissions of Brevard County (“Brevard County”) 

once final approval of the Actual Site Place is approved by Brevard County and any other appropriate regulatory 

agencies.  Tenant, its directors, officers, employees, agents, contractors, suppliers, customers, invitees and guests, 

shall have the right of ingress to and egress from the Property over adjacent property owned by  BBRD, including 

the use of the publicly dedicated rights-of-way and BBRD controlled vehicular rights-of-way adjacent to the Leased 

Property if approved by Brevard County, as part of the approval of the Actual Site Plan, subject to such reasonable 

policies, rules, and regulations as may be established by BBRD with respect to areas controlled by BBRD.  

Page 17 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 5 of 32 

 

 SECTION 102.   TERM AND RENEWAL 

  Subsection 102.1.  Term of Lease.  The Initial Term of this Lease shall be for a period of ten (10) 

years  commencing on the _____ day of _________, 20     (“Commencement Date”) and terminating on the last day 

of the one hundred twentieth (120th) month following the Commencement Date. 

  Subsection 102.2.  Option to Renew.  BBRD does hereby grant to Tenant the right, privilege and 

option to renew this Lease for two (2) additional terms of ten (10) years each, from the date of expiration of the Initial 

Term hereof upon the terms and conditions as herein contained, provided notice in writing to BBRD of Tenant’s 

intention to exercise said options is given at least one-hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the term 

hereof  (unless lack of notice is waived by BBRD) and provided that Tenant shall not be in material default under the 

terms of this Lease beyond any applicable cure period at the time of such notice and provided further that this Lease 

is then in effect.  Whenever reference is made herein to the “term” of this Lease, it shall include the Initial Term 

described in Section 102.1 above and the renewal terms described in this Subsection 102.2. 

 

 SECTION 103.  USE OF PROPERTY 

  Subsection 103.1.  Improvements to the Property.  BBRD acknowledges hereby that Tenant is 

leasing the Property for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and operating a medical clinic/facility on the 

Property, and all other facilities necessary for or related to Tenant’s present and future business, and that in order to 

utilize the Property for this purpose, it will be necessary to construct buildings and other improvements (collectively, 

“Improvements”) upon the Property and to make alterations and renovations thereto at Tenant's sole cost and expense.  

Upon the Commencement Date of this Lease, BBRD will provide authorization for Tenant to act as Applicant on its 

behalf for any required license, permit, or site plan applications.  Tenant shall be solely responsible for all costs related 

to any such applications.  Tenant shall use its best efforts to provide BBRD copies of any and all license, permit, and 

site plan applications filed with Brevard County or other regulatory agencies at least fourteen (14) days in advance 

of filing.  Tenant’s activities shall in no way interfere with the established use of BBRD adjacent commercial 

shopping center and/or its related parking. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all costs associated with the 

extension of any required utility lines necessary to serve the Leased Property and for the construction of any required 

stormwater maintenance system serving the Leased Property that arises from its Improvement/development of 

Tenant’s Improvements. BBRD will grant any required temporary easements for development purposes so long as 

Tenant shall not unreasonably interfere with BBRD business operations during the Improvement/development 

process. The parties shall reasonably coordinate Improvement/development efforts and business operations during 

Page 18 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 6 of 32 

development of the Leased Property.  Tenant shall take the subject property “AS IS” and shall be solely responsible 

for any required cost(s) and expense(s) arising from any inherent site condition that creates an impediment to 

Improvements/development. Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless BBRD from any code 

enforcement or regulatory compliance fines or assessments levied by Brevard County or any other regulatory agency 

as a result of Tenant’s noncompliance with any approved permit or site plan requirement(s). At the termination of 

this Lease and any applicable renewal term(s), BBRD shall have the option of accepting the Improvements, including 

a planned modular building or requiring its removal by Tenant. All Improvements such as parking, utilities, and 

drainage shall become property of BBRD.  Except for removal of the planned modular building, Tenant shall have 

no obligation to remove site improvements upon termination of the Lease or renewal term(s), if any. 

 For purposes of this Lease, the term “Construction Period” shall mean the period from the Commencement 

Date (as defined in Subsection 102.1 above) until the Rent Commencement Date (as defined in Subsection 104.1 

below).  Tenant shall, upon obtaining any and all necessary government permits and/or approvals, have the right to 

change, alter, raze or add to any Improvements, or any part thereof, now existing or change, alter, or add to any 

Improvements, or any part thereof hereafter erected, constructed, or installed on the Property and to remove (other 

than the planned modular building upon termination if to be retained by BBRD) the personal property (the 

“Personalty”) installed or placed by Tenant in, on, or about the Improvements on the Property.  BBRD acknowledges 

and agrees that title to all future Improvements and Personality shall not be in BBRD, but is and shall remain in 

Tenant or any sub-Tenant of Tenant during the term of this Lease.  Should BBRD accept ownership of the planned 

modular building at the expiration of the Lease Agreement, Tenant shall sign any appropriate title to such planned 

modular building over to BBRD without additional consideration. 

 Subsection 103.2.  Delivery and Acceptance of the Property.   In the event that Tenant is unable to secure 

necessary governmental approvals, permits, and licenses for the Improvements and/or Actual Site Plan within 

fifteen (15) months from the Commencement Date, then this Lease shall be null and void ab initio, and neither 

party shall have any further obligation to the other hereunder, and payments previously made by Tenant to BBRD 

shall be retained by BBRD. BBRD shall not be required to expend any money or incur any costs in assisting 

Tenant in securing approval for Improvements. BBRD does not guarantee the successful or timely issuance of 

said approvals, grants, permits, or authorizations by any governmental agency. 

Subsection 103.3. Payment and Performance Bond.  Prior to entering into any contract for the 

construction, improvement or repair of any building or structure, or for any other construction project, on the 

Property, Tenant shall require its contractor(s) to execute a payment and performance bond (“Bond”) with a surety 

insurer authorized to do business in the State of Florida as surety.  If Tenant acts as general contractor for any 

Page 19 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 7 of 32 

such project, then Tenant shall itself execute the Bond.  Upon execution, Tenant shall record the Bond in the 

Public Records of Brevard County, Florida and deliver a copy of the Bond to BBRD.  The Bond shall be 

conditioned upon the contractor’s performance of the construction work in the time and manner prescribed in the 

contract and promptly making payments to all persons defined in Florida Statute §713.01 who furnish labor, 

services, or materials for the accomplishment of the work provided for in the contract.  The Bond shall not contain 

any provision that restricts the classes of persons defined in Florida Statute §713.01, or that purports to affect the 

venue of any proceeding relating to the Bond.  The amount of the Bond shall equal the contract price.  The Bond 

must state on its front page: 1) the name, principal business address and phone number of the contractor, the 

surety, and BBRD as owner of the Property; 2) the contract number if applicable; and, 3) a description of the 

project sufficient to identify it.  The Bond shall in all other respects meet the requirements of Florida Statute 

§255.05, regardless of whether BBRD is party to the contract or whether the project constitutes a public work.  In 

lieu of the Bond required by this Subsection, a contractor may file with BBRD an alternative form of security in 

the form of cash, money order, certified check, cashier’s check or irrevocable letter of credit in an amount equal 

to the contract price.  

 

 SECTION 104.  BASE RENT AND ADJUSTMENTS 

Subsection 104.1.  Base Rent.   Except during the “Rent Abatement Period” and the 3-month 

extension thereof (if applicable), Annual base rent during the Initial Term shall be twenty thousand dollars 

($20,000.00) annually, payable by Tenant in twelve (12) equal monthly installments each year of the Initial Term. 

Except as otherwise set forth in this Section, Total base rent during the Initial Term shall be $200,000.00.  BBRD 

agrees to remit such sales tax to the State of Florida or other legal BBRD as required by law. 

Annual base rent during each Renewal Term shall be twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) 

annually, payable by Tenant in twelve (12) equal monthly installments throughout each year of the Extension Term. 

Total base rent during each Renewal Term shall be $250,000.00. 

Rent under the Lease shall be abated for a period of nine (9) months from the Commencement Date 

of the Lease (the “Rent Abatement Period”), during which Rent Abatement Period Tenant shall pursue permitting 

approval and build-out on the Leased Property. In the event a Certificate of Occupancy/Completion has not been 

issued on or before expiration of the Rent Abatement Period, Tenant shall be entitled to one (1) three (3) month 

extension of the Rent Abatement Period (for a cumulative total of twelve (12) months for build-out of Improvements). 

In the event a Certificate of Occupancy/Completion has not been issued following the 3-month extension of the Rent 

Abatement Period, rental payments shall commence at half base monthly rent effective on the first annual anniversary 

Page 20 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 8 of 32 

of the Commencement Date of the Lease for a period not to exceed three (3) months (“Half Rent Commencement 

Date”). Unless otherwise agreed to by both parties, upon the earlier of either the issuance of a Certificate of 

Occupancy/Completion or fifteen (15) months from the Commencement Date of the Lease, full rental payments shall 

commence (“Rent Commencement Date”). 
  

  Subsection 104.2.  Additional Rent for Ad Valorem Taxes.  Tenant shall pay to BBRD as additional 

monthly rent one twelfth (1/12) of the estimated annual ad valorem tax bill and any non-ad valorem fees and 

assessments on the Property, plus sales tax.  Upon determination of the actual taxes due on the Property, Tenant shall, 

within thirty (30) days of BBRD’s notice of additional sums due pursuant to the tax bill, pay any such additional 

sums owed bill to BBRD, and in the event Tenant has overpaid them, Tenant shall receive a credit toward its next 

monthly tax payment, and continue receiving a credit until the tax credit is used up.  For purposes of estimating the 

tax payments to be paid by Tenant hereunder, BBRD shall use the prior tax year billing, which the parties 

acknowledge does not included planned improvements or increase in land valuation. Payment of applicable taxes is 

addressed further in Article 3 to this Lease. 

 

 SECTION 105.  DELINQUENT PAYMENTS.  If any rent payment is not received by BBRD within 

five (5) days after such payment is due, then a delinquent fee of one and one half percent (1.5%) of the actual 

undisputed past due amount shall be added to the rent payment and shall be paid by Tenant to BBRD.  Tenant’s 

failure to pay any installment of rent within thirty (30) days after the installment is due shall constitute an event 

of default under the terms of the Lease. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

BBRD AND TENANT OBLIGATIONS 
 

 SECTION 201.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.  Tenant agrees that the business to be operated by 

it on the Property will not be operated in such a manner as to constitute a nuisance (based upon the usage of 

surrounding land on the Commencement Date) or a hazard and that in connection with the operation of the business, 

Tenant will substantially observe and comply with all applicable material laws, ordinances, orders and regulations 

applicable to the business operated by Tenant on the Property.  BBRD warrants and represents that on the 

Commencement Date, the Property is in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders, and 

regulations (Laws, including, without limitation, Laws regarding Hazardous Wastes). 

 

Page 21 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 9 of 32 

 SECTION 202.  REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS.  BBRD shall not be obligated to maintain the Property 

or the Improvements thereon during the Lease term or any renewal hereof unless required due to the negligence or 

willful act of BBRD. 

 Tenant agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to maintain all of the Improvements, including any parking 

and service areas, in a good state of repair and to keep the Property in a reasonably clean, neat and orderly 

condition. 

 

 SECTION 203. UTILITIES AND SITE ACCESS.  BBRD will cooperate with the Tenant in allowing the 

Tenant access to the adjacent shopping center property owned by BBRD for the purpose of the Tenant’s preparation 

of required engineering studies and application process necessary to extend utilities and transportation access to the 

Leased Property.  The capacity and availability of public and private utilities is not guaranteed by BBRD.  Further, 

BBRD cannot guarantee approvals for road entrances, traffic island crossovers, signalization, turning lanes, 

acceleration lanes, etc. or any other traffic control items required by Brevard County.  In the event a critical utility 

(potable water, sewer, electricity, and/or telecommunications) or adequate transportation access cannot be made 

available to the Property within fifteen (15) months of the Commencement Date, Tenant may terminate this Lease 

without prejudice.  Unless otherwise stated in the Lease, Tenant is responsible for all costs associated with the 

extension of utilities, both public and private, to the Property and Improvements necessary to provide transportation 

access.  

Tenant shall have the right to grant any easements, rights of way, and licenses required by any public or quasi-

public utility company with respect to the construction, operation and use of the Improvements and Personalty.  

BBRD shall execute any instruments any such public or quasi-public utility companies may reasonably request or 

require from BBRD; provided, however, that in each case such easement, right of way or license (i) does not 

materially impair the value, utility and remaining useful life of the Property, (ii) is reasonably necessary in connection 

with the construction, operation or use of the Improvements and the Personalty, and (iii) does not cause the Property 

or any portion thereof to fail to comply with all material requirements of law.   

 

SECTION 204. UTILITY CHARGES.  Tenant shall be responsible for charges for electricity, water, sewer, 

solid waste, or any other utility or service consumed in connection with the occupancy of the Property by Tenant.   

 

SECTION 205. ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS.  Brevard County will determine if the 

Improvements are of sufficient size to require a transportation concurrency study and/or other traffic access 

Page 22 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 10 of 32 

studies.  Tenant is responsible for all studies and costs associated with this requirement, as well as the assessments 

and improvements required by Brevard County.  In addition, Tenant is responsible for all transportation, utility 

and other impact fees associated with this project levied by Brevard County. 

 

 SECTION 206.  FAILURE OF TENANT TO COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION.   

 A. Tenant shall substantially complete construction of the Improvements on before fifteen (15) 

months from the Commencement Date of this Lease unless the delay in construction was caused by elements of 

Force Majeure in which event this period shall be extended by BBRD for a reasonable length of time to allow 

Tenant to complete the construction of its Improvements.    

 B.   In the event Tenant fails to complete said Improvements by the date specified herein or the date of 

any extensions granted by BBRD, then BBRD shall have the right to terminate this Lease without obligation of 

BBRD to pay Tenant any compensation for work performed and funds expended prior to such termination, 

provided, however, that BBRD delivers written notice to Tenant at least (90) ninety days in advance of the 

termination date specified in the notice and giving Tenant the opportunity to cure the development failure within 

said ninety day period.  

 

 SECTION 207.  ADDITIONAL COVENANTS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS OF 

BBRD.   BBRD warrants and represents that there are (i) no mortgages, liens or encumbrances, (ii) no covenants or 

restrictions, and (iii) no agreements with third parties, which may prevent or impair BBRD from performing any of 

its covenants under this Lease. 

 

 SECTION 208.  SIGNS.  Tenant shall have the right to erect and maintain such sign or signs on the Property 

and Improvements as may be permitted by applicable law. 

 

 SECTION 209.  EXCLUSIVITY.   Except for that certain lease between BBRD and Shaw Medical Group, 

LLC with a commencement date of August 1, 2020 (the "Nurse Practitioner Lease"), and as such Nurse Practitioner 

Lease may be amended or renewed, BBRD agrees that the provision of professional medical services shall at all times 

during the Initial Term or any Renewal Termbe exclusive to Tenant.  Except for the Nurse Practitioner Lease, and as 

such Nurse Practitioner Lease may be amended or renewed, BBRD agrees it shall not enter into a medical office 

space lease with a medical service provider other than Shaw Medical Group during the Initial Term or any renewal 

Page 23 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 11 of 32 

Term, nor shall BBRD allow any shopping center tenants to assign and/or change use of their respective Leased 

Property in a manner that competes with Tenant. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

TAXES 
 
 SECTION 301.  AD VALOREM TAXES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove described 

all ad valorem taxes levied or assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental authorities 

as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to 

BBRD or Tenant, together with all taxes levied against any stock of merchandise, furniture, furnishings, equipment 

and other property located in, on or upon the Property.   

 Tenant shall have the right to contest the validity or amount of any ad valorem tax imposed against the 

Property and the Improvements at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, however, Tenant’s contest of the validity of 

any tax imposed against the Property and Improvements shall not relieve Tenant of its obligation to pay the 

monthly tax payments called for in Section 104.2 above.  In the event Tenant is successful in its contest of the tax 

and as a result the tax is changed, then BBRD agrees to adjust the monthly tax payment due to reflect the new tax 

assessment, and Tenant agrees to pay any sums necessary to bring the monthly payments on deposit with BBRD 

to an amount sufficient to pay the annual tax bill when it comes due.  Upon adjudication (including all appeals) 

of such contest, Tenant shall pay all court costs, interest, penalties and other expenses related to the appeal. 

 

 SECTION 302.  SOLID WASTE FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove described, 

all solid waste fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental authorities as a 

result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to BBRD 

or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 303.   STORM WATER FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove 

described, all storm water fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental 

authorities as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is 

addressed to BBRD or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 304.   EMERGENCY AMBULANCE/EMS FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the 

method hereinabove described, all emergency ambulance/EMS fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, 

Page 24 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 12 of 32 

by the appropriate governmental authorities as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to 

this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to BBRD or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 305. OTHER TAXES AND FEES. Tenant shall pay as a result of Tenant’s occupancy 

or use of the property pursuant to this Lease, according to the method described above, any and all taxes, fees, or 

assessments, plus sales tax, that may be levied and not know at this time. 

 
ARTICLE 4 

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY 
 
 SECTION 401.  LIABILITY INSURANCE.  In addition to such insurances as may be required by law, 

Tenant shall maintain, without lapse or material chance, for so long as it occupies the Property and Improvements, 

the following insurance: 

 (A)   Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability, to cover Tenant’s 

Property and Improvements and operations, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per 

occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  BBRD must be shown as an additional insured with respect 

to this coverage.  Coverages shall be for each occurrence, with either no aggregate or an annual policy aggregate 

of no less than twice the amount of coverage required for each occurrence.  In the event that Tenant’s available 

coverage falls below the per occurrence amount shown above, Tenant shall secure a new certificate of insurance 

evidencing the required coverage.   

 (B)   Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles (including 

ground or mobile equipment) used by Tenant in connection with its operations under this Agreement in an amount 

not less than: 

  (1)  $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 

covering all vehicles and ground and mobile equipment used by Tenant in connection with its business operation; 

and/or 

  (2)  $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 

covering such vehicles being used by Tenant on the Leased Property. 

 (C)   The insurance coverages required shall include those classifications, as listed in standard liability 

insurance manuals, which most nearly reflect the operations of Tenant under this Agreement.  All insurance 

policies required pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be issued in companies approved to do business 

under the laws of the State of Florida.  Such companies must be rated no less than “A” as to management, and no 

Page 25 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 13 of 32 

less than “V” as to strength in accordance with the latest edition of “Best’s Insurance Guide”, published by A.M. 

Best Company, Inc., or its equivalent, subject to approval of BBRD’s General Counsel. 

 

 SECTION 402.  PROPERTY INSURANCE: 

 (A)   Builders Risk and Hazard Insurance:  Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, throughout the term of 

this Agreement, shall keep the Improvements insured on an “All Risk” basis in an amount not less than 100% of 

the full replacement value of the Improvements against loss or damage (in excess of a reasonable per occurrence 

deductible amount, which shall be the responsibility of Tenant) by fire, lightning, tornado, hurricane, windstorm, 

hail, flood, earthquake, explosion, riot, riot attending strike, civil commotion, vandalism and malicious mischief, 

sprinklers and sprinkler leakage, aircraft, vehicles and smoke, or any other casualty in an amount not less than 

100% of the full replacement value of the Improvements to the extent such coverage is commercially available at 

commercially reasonable rates.  The full replacement value of the Improvements shall be established as of the 

Commencement Date of this Lease and shall be established at intervals of not more than three (3) years thereafter, 

by any professional property evaluators used by BBRD for establishing replacement values for BBRD property.  

Any deficiency in the amount of the proceeds from such property insurance resulting from a failure by Tenant to 

re-establish the full replacement value of the Improvements shall be the sole responsibility of Tenant.  In addition, 

BBRD shall be shown on the policies as a loss payee. 

  (1)   Damage or Destruction and Restoration of the Improvements:  In case of damage to or loss 

of all or a portion of the Improvements, Tenant shall give prompt notice thereof to BBRD; and,  Tenant shall 

promptly commence and complete with due diligence (subject only to delays beyond its reasonable control), the 

restoration of the damaged or destroyed portion of the Improvements as nearly as reasonably practicable to the 

value and condition thereof immediately prior to such damage or destruction.  In the event of such damage or 

destruction, the proceeds of all property insurance policies shall be used to restore the facility to make it function 

for the uses permitted under Article 1.  Tenant shall receive reimbursement from the proceeds of all property 

insurance policies for the Improvements and shall be obligated to provide any additional monies necessary for 

such restoration. 

 (B)   Business Interruption Insurance:  Tenant at its sole cost and expense throughout the term of this 

Agreement, shall maintain business interruption insurance at a minimum, in an amount sufficient to continue 

making land rental, and payments of taxes and insurance, during the rebuilding period as a result of damage to 

the Improvements. 

 

Page 26 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 14 of 32 

 SECTION 403.  INSURANCE CERTIFICATES:  Prior to the commencement of operations hereunder 

and annually thereafter, Tenant shall furnish or cause to be furnished certificates of insurance to BBRD which 

certificates shall clearly indicate that: 

 

(A)   Tenant has obtained insurance in the types, amounts and classifications as required for strict 

compliance with this Article; 

(B)  The policy cancellation notification provisions specify at least thirty (30) days advance written 

notice of cancellation to BBRD; 

(C)   BBRD is named as an additional insured with respect to Tenant’s commercial general liability 

policies; 

(D)   BBRD is named as a loss payee with respect to Tenant’s builder’s risk and property insurance 

policies; and 

   (E)   On said insurance certificates, liability coverage shall include contractual liability and 

notification of cancellation. 

 

 SECTION 404.   ADDITIONAL INSURANCE:  In addition to the types and levels of coverage 

provided in this Article, BBRD reserves the right to require Tenant to provide additional types of coverage and/or 

different or higher levels of coverage from time to time during this Agreement, upon issuance of notice in writing 

to Tenant, which notice shall automatically amend this Agreement effective 90 days after such notice. If such 

coverage is not commercially available, reasonable documentation with respect thereto shall be provided by 

Tenant to BBRD.  

 

 SECTION 405. COMPLIANCE:  Compliance with the requirements of this Article 4 shall not relieve 

Tenant of its liability under any other portion of this Agreement or any other agreement between BBRD and 

Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 406.  RIGHT TO EXAMINE:  BBRD reserves the right, upon reasonable notice, to examine 

true copies of applicable portions of policies of insurance (including but not limited to binders, amendments, 

exclusions, riders and applications) to determine the true extent of coverage.  Tenant agrees to permit such 

inspection at the offices of BBRD. 

 

Page 27 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 15 of 32 

 SECTION 407.  PERSONAL PROPERTY:  Any personal property of Tenant or of others placed on 

the Property and Improvements  shall be at the sole risk of Tenant or the owners thereof, and BBRD shall not be 

liable for any loss or damage, except to the extent such loss or damage was caused by the negligence or willful 

misconduct of the BBRD, as limited by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

 SECTION 408.  INDEMNIFICATION.  Tenant shall indemnify and hold harmless BBRD and its 

Trustees, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, and instrumentalities from any and all liability, losses or 

damages, including attorneys’ fees and costs of defense, that BBRD or its Trustees, officers, employees, agents, 

attorneys or instrumentalities may be subject to as a result of claims, demands, suits, causes of action or 

proceedings of any kind or nature arising out of, relating to or resulting from the performance of this Agreement 

by Tenant, the Tenant’s business activities, and/or the actions of Tenant’s employees, agents, servants, partners, 

principals, contractors, subcontractors, sub-Tenants, or invitees.  Tenant shall pay all claims and losses in 

connection therewith and shall investigate and defend all claims, suits or action of any kind or nature in the name 

of BBRD, where applicable, including appellate proceedings, and shall pay costs, judgments and attorney’s fees 

which may issue thereon.  Tenant expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this 

Agreement or otherwise provided by Tenant shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save 

harmless and defend BBRD or its Trustees, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, and instrumentalities as herein 

provided. The obligation of Tenant hereunder shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  Such payment on 

behalf of BBRD shall be in addition to any and all legal remedies available to BBRD and shall not be considered 

to be BBRD’s exclusive remedy.  In agreeing to this provision, BBRD does not intend to waive any defense or 

limit of sovereign immunity to which it may be entitled under Section 768.28, Florida Statutes or otherwise 

provided. 

ARTICLE 5 
PREVENTION OF USE OF THE PROPERTY 

If, after the effective date of this Lease, Tenant is precluded or prevented from constructing or operating the 

Improvements on the Property as contemplated by Tenant by reason of any zoning law, zoning ordinance or zoning 

regulation of any public BBRD having jurisdiction over the Property, and such prohibition shall continue for a period 

of at least ninety (90) days, then Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving to BBRD not less than thirty (30) days 

prior written notice of termination. 

 
ARTICLE 6 

DEFAULT BY TENANT 

Page 28 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 16 of 32 

 
 As used in this Lease, the term "event of default" shall mean any of the following: 

(A) The failure of Tenant to fulfill any duty or obligation imposed on Tenant by this Lease;  

(B)  The filing by Tenant of a petition or other request for any remedy or relief under the U.S. 

Bankruptcy Code, the appointment of a receiver over Tenant or Tenant’s assets, an assignment by Tenant for the 

benefit of creditors, or the participation by Tenant in any insolvency proceeding including the filing of an 

involuntary petition under 11 U.S.C. §303 that is not dismissed within ninety (90) days; without limiting the 

foregoing, this Subsection would apply to any ancillary proceedings or related relief in any insolvency type 

proceeding in any jurisdiction in the world;   

(C) The taking or the attempted taking of the Tenant’s leasehold interest hereunder pursuant to an 

execution on a judgment or otherwise.  

 Upon the happening of any event of default under paragraphs “(B)” or “(C)” of this Article 6, or upon 

Tenant’s failure to pay rent when due hereunder, BBRD may, at its option, immediately terminate this Lease and 

evict Tenant therefrom without prejudice to any other remedy.  However, upon the happening of an event of 

default under “(A)” of this Article 6, except for the failure to pay rent before the exercise of such option, BBRD 

shall give written notice of such event to Tenant, which shall have thirty (30) days thereafter within which to 

remedy or correct such default. 

ARTICLE 7 
DEFAULT BY BBRD 

 
 If BBRD fails to perform any of its covenants, agreements or other obligations under this Lease, 

and such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt by BBRD of written notice of such failure, 

or in the event of emergency promptly after written notice, then Tenant shall have the right (but not the obligation) 

to take such actions, and to expend such monies, after BBRD’s approval of the written quote for such expenditures 

prior to Tenant authorizing the expenditure, as Tenant reasonably deems necessary or appropriate to perform 

BBRD’s covenants, agreements or obligations and BBRD provides written notification it cannot remedy such 

failure.  In such event, Tenant shall be entitled to set-off against base rent otherwise due hereunder all amounts 

which Tenant expends to perform BBRD’s obligations.  The foregoing rights of self-help and set-off shall be in 

addition to, not in lieu of, any rights and remedies which Tenant has at law, in equity or under this Lease. 

 

ARTICLE 8 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION 

 

Page 29 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 17 of 32 

 BBRD and Tenant covenant and warrant one each to the other that it has not authorized any person, firm or 

corporation as a real estate agent or broker to deal on behalf of BBRD with Tenant or Tenant with BBRD, and BBRD 

and Tenant agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from any claim for remuneration, commissions or 

broker’s fees arising out of this transaction and Lease. 
 

ARTICLE 9 
IDENTITY OF INTEREST 

 
 The execution of this Lease or the performance of any act pursuant to the provisions hereof shall not be 

deemed or construed to have the effect of creating between BBRD and Tenant the relationship of principal and agent 

or of a partnership or of a joint venture, and the relationship between them shall be and remain only that of BBRD 

and Tenant. 

 
ARTICLE 10 

NOTICES AND REPORTS 
 

 Any notice, report, statement, approval, consent, designation, demand or request to be given or any option 

or election to be exercised by a party under the provision of this Lease shall be effective only when received and 

when made in writing and delivered (or mailed by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid or by Federal 

Express to the other party at the following address: 

  
 BBRD:    John Coffey, ICMA-CM 
     Community Manager 
     Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
     625 Barefoot Blvd.  
     Barefoot Bay, Florida 32934 
 
 Tenant:    Sanjay K. Shetty, MD 
     Executive Vice President 
     Steward Medical Group 
     c/o Steward Health Care System 
     1900 N. Pearl Street 
     Suite 2400 
     Dallas, TX 75201      
 
Provided, however, that either party may designate a different address from time to time by giving to the other party 

notice in writing of the change.  Rental payments to BBRD shall be made by Tenant at BBRD's address provided 

herein. 

Page 30 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 18 of 32 

ARTICLE 11 
MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 

 
 Either party may file a Memorandum of the Lease with the Property Appraiser’s Office or have the Lease 

recorded by the Clerk of Court at the filing or recording party’s sole expense.  

 

ARTICLE 12 
ENTRY OF BBRD 

 
 BBRD may enter the Property during business hours with reasonable advance notice (not less than three 

(3) business days, except in emergencies constituting an immediate threat to life or property) and subject to 

Tenant’s security rules and regulations:  

 (A) To inspect or protect said Property; 

 (B) To determine whether Tenant is complying (as required under this Lease) with the applicable laws, 

orders or regulations of any lawful BBRD having jurisdiction over the Property or any business conducted therein; 

or 

 (C) To exhibit the said Property to any prospective purchaser when Tenant is in default of this Lease or 

has notified BBRD of intention to terminate this Lease or during the last six (6) months of the Initial Term or any 

Renewal Termof this Lease. 

 No authorized entry by BBRD shall constitute an eviction of Tenant or a deprivation of its rights or alter the 

obligation of BBRD or create any right in BBRD adverse to the interest of Tenant hereunder, provided BBRD shall 

not unreasonably interfere with Tenant’s use and occupancy of the Property or Tenant’s business operations. 

 
ARTICLE 13 

LEASE EXPIRATION 
 

 At the expiration of the Lease, all improvements erected on the Property shall become the sole 

property of BBRD.  Any and all trade fixtures, signs, and other personal property placed on the Property by Tenant 

(other than the planned modular building) shall remain Tenant's sole property, and Tenant shall have the right to 

remove the same within ten (10) days after expiration of the Lease, provided any damages caused by such removal 

are repaired by Tenant at the time of removal.  In the event Tenant fails to remove its personal property within ten 

(10) days after expiration of the Lease, said failure to remove shall be deemed to be an abandonment of the property.  

In the event of such abandonment, BBRD shall have the right to remove and sell or dispose of the personal property 

without providing Tenant with any notice of removal, sale, or disposal of the personal property, and without any 

Page 31 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 19 of 32 

liability to the Tenant. All monies received from any sale or disposal of the personal property by BBRD shall first be 

used to reimburse BBRD for any expenses incurred including without limitation attorney’s fees and costs of all kind 

and nature, and the balance remaining after setting off any sums still owed by Tenant to BBRD shall be remitted to 

the Tenant.  BBRD shall have the option of accepting the modular building or requiring its removal by Tenant at the 

expiration or termination of this Lease.  Should BBRD accept ownership of the planned modular building at the 

expiration of the Lease Agreement, Tenant shall sign any appropriate title to such planned modular building over to 

BBRD without additional consideration. 

 

ARTICLE 14 
QUIET ENJOYMENT 

 
 Subject to the provisions of this Lease, BBRD covenants that Tenant, on paying the rent and performing 

the covenants of this Lease on its part to be performed, shall and may peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy 

the Property for the term of this Lease.  BBRD represents that it has the authority to execute this Lease and that 

it has obtained all necessary governmental authorizations or approvals to execute this Lease and that this Lease 

constitutes a valid and binding obligation of BBRD, enforceable against BBRD in accordance with its terms. 

 
 

ARTICLE 15 
BBRD POLICIES  

 From time to time, BBRD may adopt and amend Policies with respect to the occupancy and use of the 

Property. Tenant shall observe and obey such Policies and shall require its officers, agents, employees, subtenants, 

contractors, and suppliers, to observe and obey the same.  BBRD reserves the right to deny access to the Property to 

any person or entity that fails or refuses to obey and comply with such Policies, or any applicable laws.  BBRD’s 

Policies will not be inconsistent with the terms of this Lease, nor with BBRD’s governing documents, nor with any 

Brevard County Ordinance.  Tenant shall be furnished a current copy of BBRD's Policy Manual and any amendments 

thereto within ten (10) days of the Commencement Date of this Lease Agreement.   

 

ARTICLE 16 
NONDISCRIMINATION 

 
  Tenant covenants and agrees, as a covenant running with the land comprising the Property, that it will 

not discriminate against anyone in any protected class including, but not limited to race, creed, color, national origin, 

religion, gender, or sexual orientation pursuant to any title of the of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 applicable to BBRD, 

Page 32 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 20 of 32 

and as said regulations may be amended. 

  

ARTICLE 17 
WARRANTIES 

 
 BBRD warrants that upon commencement of the Lease term, the Property will be free and clear of all 

encumbrances except ad valorem taxes for the current calendar year and easements and restrictions of record; that 

there are no easements and/or restrictions of record or otherwise, which will (i) impair, preclude or adversely 

affect Tenant’s use and development of the Property, as contemplated by this Lease, (ii) interfere with Tenant’s 

rights under this Lease, or (iii) interfere with BBRD’s ability to perform its covenants and obligations under this 

Lease; that BBRD has full power and BBRD to execute this Lease and that it will warrant and defend the leasehold 

interest created hereby against all parties whomsoever and that Tenant upon observing and complying with the 

terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease shall enjoy the use and occupancy of the Property during the Lease 

term and any renewals thereof. 

 
ARTICLE 18 

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 
 
 Tenant shall not assign this Lease or sublet the Leased Property or any portion thereof, or otherwise transfer 

any right or interest hereunder, without the prior written consent of BBRD, which consent shall not be unreasonably 

withheld or delayed. If BBRD consents to the assignment, subletting, or other transfer of any right or interest 

hereunder by Tenant, such approval shall be limited to the particular instance specified in the consent and Tenant 

shall not be relieved of any duty, obligation, or liability under the provisions of this Lease. In the event Tenant wishes 

to assign this Lease to another party, and BBRD consents to the assignment there will be a $2,500 administrative fee 

charged to Tenant. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 19 
ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
SECTION 1901. ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY TENANT. 

Tenant represents and warrants that it will comply and will be in compliance in all material respects with all 

Page 33 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 21 of 32 

applicable environmental laws, ordinances, orders or decree of all state, federal, municipal, or other governmental 

body or agency, as it relates to the subject Property. 

 Tenant further warrants that no hazardous or toxic waste or hazardous substances (as defined in the 

Comprehensive Environmental Compensation and Liability act of 1980, as amended, the Resources Conservation 

and Recovery act of 1986, as amended, or any successor or similar law) will be processed, discharged, stored, treated, 

disposed of or managed by Tenant, its assigns, subtenants, agents or contractors at the Property subject to this Lease 

other than in accordance with all federal, state and local environmental laws, regulations, codes or ordinances. 

 

SECTION 1902. ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNIFICATION BY TENANT. Tenant hereby agrees 

to indemnify, defend and hold BBRD harmless from and against any and all claims, lawsuits, losses, liabilities, 

damages, and expenses (including without limitations cleanup costs and reasonable attorney’s fees arising by 

reason of the aforesaid or an action against Tenant under this indemnity) resulting directly or indirectly from, out 

of or by reason of (i) any Hazardous Waste being located on the Property which is attributed to Tenant, its officers, 

directors, employees, agents, assigns, subtenants, guest, invitees, contractors, or subcontractors, or (ii) any breach 

of Section 1901 or (iii) an Environmental Complaint occurring as a result of occupancy of the Property by Tenant, 

its subtenants or assigns. “Environmental Complaint” as used in the Lease means any complaint, order, citation 

or notice from a governmental or private person or entity with regard to any federal, state or local environmental 

and safety laws, regulations, codes or ordinances.  

 

ARTICLE 20 
MORTGAGE INTEREST 

 
 Notwithstanding any provision of this Lease agreement to the contrary, the provisions herein-after set forth 

shall apply to the holder of record of a first mortgage on Tenant's interest herein: 

 (A) Tenant shall have the right to mortgage Tenant's interest under this Lease to a federal or state savings 

and loan association, bank or trust company, insurance company, pension fund or trust or other institutional lender 

authorized to make leasehold mortgage loans in the State of Florida without obtaining the prior consent of BBRD, 

subject, however, to the other terms and conditions of this Lease. 

 (B) If Tenant shall mortgage its leasehold interest and if the holder of the mortgage shall forward to 

BBRD a copy of the recorded Mortgage together with a written notice setting forth the name and address of the 

leasehold mortgagee, then, until the time that the leasehold mortgage shall be satisfied or record, the following 

provisions of this paragraph shall apply. 

Page 34 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 22 of 32 

 (C) When giving notice to Tenant with respect to any default under the provisions of this lease, including 

the failure of Tenant to pay rent, BBRD will also serve a copy of such notice upon the leasehold mortgagee(s), 

which copy shall be sent by BBRD by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, to such mortgagee(s), which notice 

must specify the nature of each such default. 

 (D) The leasehold mortgagee, upon receipt from BBRD of the notice referred to in subparagraph (C) 

above, shall have, in addition to any period of grace extended to Tenant under the terms and conditions of this Lease, 

a period of sixty (60) days within which to cure the default or cause the same to be cured, or to commence to cure 

such default with diligence and continuity; provided, however, that as to any default of Tenant for failure to pay 

rent, the leasehold mortgagee shall be given written notice of such default by certified mail by BBRD, and the 

leasehold mortgagee shall have thirty (30) additional days from the date the notice of default was mailed within 

which to cure such default. 

 (E) In case Tenant shall default under any of the provisions of this Lease, the leasehold mortgagee shall 

have the right to cure such default, whether the same consists of the failure to pay rent or the failure to perform any 

other matter or thing which Tenant is required to do or perform, and BBRD shall accept such performance on the 

part of the leasehold mortgagee as though the same had been done or performed by Tenant.  BBRD further agrees, 

that in the case of any default by Tenant, so long as no default in respect of the payment of rent shall exist hereunder, 

that BBRD will take no action to effect a termination of the term of this Lease by the serving of a notice by reason 

of any such default, without first giving to the leasehold mortgagee a reasonable time, not to exceed sixty (60) days 

from the mailing of notice by BBRD, except payment of rent which shall be cured by leasehold mortgagee within 

thirty (30) days of mailing of notice, within which to cure said defaults [(i) to obtain possession of the premises 

(including possession by receiver) and cure such default in the case of a default which is susceptible of being cured 

when the leasehold mortgagee has obtained possession; or (ii) to institute foreclosure, or otherwise acquire Tenant's 

interest under this Lease, with diligence and continuity and, thereafter to commence and diligently proceed to cure 

such default; provided, however, that the leasehold mortgagee shall not be required to continue such possession or 

continue such foreclosure proceedings if the default which would have been the reason for serving such a notice 

shall be cured, and provided further, that nothing herein shall preclude BBRD from exercising any rights or remedies 

under this Lease with respect to any other default by Tenant during any period of such forbearance.]  BBRD agrees 

to recognize the leasehold mortgagee as Tenant under this Lease for so long as the leasehold mortgagee holds this 

Lease as a result of a foreclosure of its mortgage or as a result of the assignment of this Lease in lieu of foreclosure, 

or otherwise, whereupon such leasehold mortgagee shall immediately become and remain liable under this Lease, 

except as provided below without having to obtain the consent of BBRD to same.  In such event, the term "Tenant" 

Page 35 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 23 of 32 

as used in this section, means only the owner or holder of Tenant's interest for the time being so that in the event of 

a sale, assignment or other disposition of Tenant's interest in this Lease by the leasehold mortgagee, the mortgagee 

shall be entirely freed and released of all covenants and obligations of Tenant under this Lease. 

 (F) References in this lease to acquisition of Tenant's interest in this lease by the leasehold mortgagee 

shall be deemed to refer, where circumstances require, to acquisition of Tenant's interest in this lease by any 

purchaser at a sale on foreclosure of the leasehold mortgage, and all provisions to the leasehold mortgagee in such 

instance or instances shall also be applicable to any such purchaser. 

 (G) Any leasehold mortgage shall be specifically subject and subordinate to BBRD's rights under this 

lease.  The foregoing shall not be deemed or construed to impose or establish upon Tenant's interest in this Lease or 

upon the lien of any leasehold mortgage the superiority of any lien or encumbrance, including, without limitation, 

the lien of any fee mortgage, judgment or tax created directly or indirectly by, through or against BBRD or BBRD's 

interest in this Lease. 

 (H) In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Article and any other provision 

of this Lease, the terms of this Article shall control. 

 (I) Within ten (10) days after written request by Tenant or Tenant's leasehold mortgage, or in the event 

that upon any sale, assignment or mortgage of Tenant's interest in this Lease by Tenant or Tenant's leasehold 

mortgagee, an estoppel certificate shall be required from BBRD, BBRD agrees to deliver in recordable form an 

estoppel certificate to any proposed leasehold mortgagee, purchaser or assignee, or to Tenant certifying (if such be 

the case): (i) the amount of rental and additional rental due under the Lease, if any, and the date to which rentals 

have been paid; (ii) that this Lease is in full force and effect; (iii) that BBRD has no knowledge of any default under 

this Lease or if any default exists, specifying the nature of the default; and (iv) that there are no defenses or offsets 

which may be asserted by BBRD against Tenant in respect of obligations pursuant to this Lease or if defenses or 

offsets exist specifying the nature of such offsets or defenses. 

 (J) BBRD agrees that the leasehold mortgagee need not pay or otherwise satisfy any claim, the lien of 

which would be extinguished upon the conclusion of foreclosure proceedings brought by the leasehold mortgagee, 

nor shall leasehold mortgagee be required to cure any default relating to the insolvency, financial condition or 

bankruptcy of Tenant, nor shall BBRD be entitled to terminate this Lease, accelerate the rent or exercise any other 

remedy under this Lease for any reason including as a consequence of Tenant's refusal, inability or failure to assume 

and affirm this Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate so long as, within sixty (60) days following the 

leasehold mortgagee's acquisition of title to the Property following a foreclosure of the leasehold mortgagee's 

mortgage on the Property or through a Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure, the leasehold mortgagee commences to cure 

Page 36 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 24 of 32 

defaults required to be cured by it under the language above in this paragraph and thereafter diligently prosecutes 

the same and any notice of termination theretofore given shall be void and of no force and effect.  BBRD further 

acknowledges and agrees that if, during the course of a bankruptcy proceeding involving Tenant as Debtor, Tenant 

rejects or otherwise fails to assume and affirm this Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate, this Lease shall 

not terminate and the leasehold mortgagee may, within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice from BBRD of 

such rejection or other failure to assume this Lease and the irreversible release of such leasehold estate from Tenant's 

bankruptcy estate, assume this Lease by effecting a cure of the defaults required to be cured by the leasehold 

mortgagee under the language above in this paragraph and thereafter preserve the same.  BBRD further agrees that 

in the event the leasehold mortgagee forecloses its leasehold interest in the property or assigns Tenant's leasehold 

interest to a third party, BBRD will not terminate the Lease solely on account of any event of default relating to the 

insolvency, financial condition or bankruptcy of Tenant, including, without limitation, Tenant's refusal, inability or 

failure to assume and affirm the Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate, in which event, BBRD shall 

recognize the leasehold mortgagee as Tenant under the Ground Lease.  BBRD further agrees that the leasehold 

mortgagee may, pending foreclosure of its mortgage, take possession of the Property by and through its 

representative or receiver, as the leasehold mortgagee may elect and, provided it does so in accordance with the 

terms and provisions of the Lease, administer the Leased Property as if it were Tenant thereunder. 

 (K) If Tenant, or any trustee of Tenant, shall reject the Lease pursuant to Section 365(h) of the 

Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 101, et seq (the "Bankruptcy Code"), (i) Tenant shall without further act or deed be 

deemed to have elected under Section 365(h) (1) of the Bankruptcy Code to remain in possession of the Property 

for the balance of the term of the Lease, (ii) any exercise or attempted exercise by Tenant of a right to treat the Lease 

as terminated under Section 365(h)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code shall be void and (iii) neither the Mortgage nor any 

other aspect of the Loan shall be affected or impaired by rejection of the Lease.  (For the purposes of Section 365(h) 

of the Bankruptcy Code, the term "possession" shall mean the right to possession of the Property granted to Tenant 

under the Lease notwithstanding that all or part of such Property shall have been subleased.) 

 (L) If, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (J) above, the leasehold mortgagee reasonably 

determines that a new lease will be necessary to give legal or practical effect to the unimpaired or unaffected 

continuation of the leasehold mortgage, BBRD will enter into a new lease ("New Lease") of the Property.  In the 

event of termination of the Lease as a result of Tenant's default, or otherwise, without the prior written consent of 

leasehold mortgagee, BBRD shall, in addition to providing the notices of default and termination as required by 

subparagraph (C) above, provide the leasehold mortgagee with written notice that the Lease has been terminated 

together with a statement of all sums which would at the time be due under the Lease, but for such termination, and 

Page 37 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 25 of 32 

of all other defaults, if any, then known to BBRD.  BBRD agrees to enter into a new lease ("New Lease") of the 

Property with the leasehold mortgagee or its designee for the remainder of the term of the Lease effective, as of the 

date of termination, at the rent and additional rent, and upon the terms, covenants and conditions (including all 

options to renew but excluding requirements which are not applicable or which have already been fulfilled) of the 

Lease, provided: 

  (i)  leasehold mortgagee shall make written request upon BBRD for such New Lease within sixty 

(60) days after the date leasehold mortgagee receives BBRD's notice of termination of the Ground Lease; 

  (ii)  leasehold mortgagee or its designee shall pay or cause to be paid to BBRD at the time of the 

execution and delivery of such New Lease, any and all sums which would at the time of execution and delivery 

thereof be due pursuant to the Lease but for such termination and, in addition thereto, all reasonable expenses, 

including reasonable attorneys fees, which BBRD shall have incurred by reason of termination and the execution 

and delivery of the New Lease and which have not otherwise been received by BBRD from Tenant or other parties 

in interest under Tenant; 

  (iii)  leasehold mortgagee or its designee shall agree to remedy any of Tenant's defaults of which 

leasehold mortgagee was notified by BBRD's notice of termination and which are reasonably susceptible of being 

so cured by leasehold mortgagee or its designee; 

  (iv)   any New Lease made pursuant to this subparagraph shall be prior to any mortgage or other lien, 

charge, or encumbrance on the fee of the Property and Tenant under such New Lease shall have the same right, title 

and interest in and to the Property and the buildings and improvements thereon as Tenant had under the Lease; 

  (v)  Tenant under any such New Lease shall be liable to perform the obligations imposed on Tenant 

by such New Lease only during the period such person has ownership of such leasehold estate.  

 (M)  In the event the leasehold mortgagee becomes the legal owner and holder of the leasehold estate under 

the Lease by foreclosure of its leasehold mortgage, or as a result of an assignment of the Lease in lieu of foreclosure 

(which assignment is hereby consented to by BBRD), or in the event leasehold mortgagee is granted a New Lease 

pursuant to subparagraph (L) above, BBRD hereby agrees that upon receipt of a written application for consent to 

the assignment of Lease from either Tenant or leasehold mortgagee to a new lessee to whom leasehold mortgagee 

desires to transfer its interest, BBRD will execute a written consent to such assignment provided there is no 

outstanding default with respect to the payment of rental under the Lease.  BBRD further agrees that, upon becoming 

the owner and holder of the leasehold estate, leasehold mortgagee shall have all rights and privileges of Tenant.  

Further, BBRD agrees that upon acquisition of the leasehold estate by leasehold mortgagee, or its assigns, any 

Page 38 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 26 of 32 

default which is not reasonably capable of being cured by leasehold mortgagee, or which is personal to leasehold 

mortgagee, shall not be required to be cured by leasehold mortgagee or its assigns. 

 (N)  In the event that leasehold mortgagee shall acquire the interest of Tenant under the Lease and, in 

accordance with the foregoing subparagraph, assign such interest to a successor lessee, upon such assignment 

leasehold mortgagee shall thereupon be relieved of any further liability under the Lease.  

 (O)  This Lease may not be amended without prior written consent of leasehold mortgagee. 

 (P)  BBRD and Tenant shall cooperate in including in this Lease by suitable amendment from time to time 

any provision which may reasonably be requested by a proposed leasehold mortgagee for the purpose of 

implementing the mortgagee-protection provisions contained in the Lease and allowing such mortgagee 

reasonable means to protect or preserve the lien of the leasehold on the occurrence of a default under the terms of 

this Lease.  BBRD and Tenant each agree to execute and deliver (and to acknowledge, if necessary, for recording 

purposes) any agreement necessary to affect any such amendment; provided, however, that any such amendment 

shall not in any way affect the term or rent under this Lease, nor otherwise in any material respect adversely affect 

any rights of BBRD under this Lease.   

 

ARTICLE 21 
ATTORNEYS FEES 

 
If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced to enforce or interpret any provision of this Lease 

or any documents incidental thereto, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees 

and costs incurred in connection with such action or proceeding from the non-prevailing party, including all 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred on appeal or in connection with the prevailing party’s efforts to 

collect on any judgment.  The phrase "prevailing party" shall include a party who receives substantially the relief 

desired whether by dismissal, summary judgment, judgment or otherwise.  The provisions of this section shall 

survive the termination of this Lease. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 22 
OTHER PROSIVIONS 

 

Page 39 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 27 of 32 

 SECTION 2201.  REASONABLENESS AND GOOD FAITH:  Whenever this Agreement grants 

BBRD or Tenant the right to take action, exercise discretion, establish rules and regulations, make allocations, or 

other determinations, or otherwise exercise rights or fulfill obligations, BBRD and Tenant shall act reasonably 

and in good faith and take no action that might result in the frustration of the reasonable expectations of a 

sophisticated landlord and sophisticated tenant concerning the benefits to be enjoyed under this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2202.  FORCE MAJEURE: Except as provided below, any prevention, delay, or stoppage 

attributable to strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, acts of God, civil commotion, fire or other casualty, and other 

causes beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated to perform (collectively, the Force Majeure) will 

excuse the performance of that party for a period equal to the duration of the prevention, delay or stoppage. If, 

therefore, this Agreement specifies a time period for performance of an obligation of either party, a delay that a 

Force Majeure causes will extend the period within which the party must complete its performance. The foregoing 

provisions of this Section 2202 will not apply to (1) the obligations imposed with regard to rent and other charges 

Tenant must pay in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and (ii) the obligations imposed upon BBRD to 

pay any amount becoming due to Tenant under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2203. HEADINGS: Any headings preceding the text of any articles, paragraphs or sections 

of this Agreement shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement, 

nor shall they affect its meaning, construction, or effect. 

 

 SECTION 2204.  BINDING EFFECT: The terms, conditions and covenants of this Agreement shall 

inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. This provision 

shall not constitute a waiver of any conditions prohibiting assignment or subletting. 

 

 SECTION 2205.  RIGHTS RESERVED: Rights not specifically granted Tenant by this Agreement are 

reserved to BBRD. 

 

 SECTION 2206.  NO WAIVER: There shall be no waiver of the right of either party to demand strict 

performance of any of the provisions, terms and covenants of this Agreement nor shall there be any waiver of any 

breach, default or non-performance hereof by either party, unless such waiver is explicitly made in writing by the 

other party.  Any previous waiver or course of dealing shall not affect the right of either party to demand strict 

Page 40 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 28 of 32 

performance of the provisions, terms and covenants of this Agreement with respect to any subsequent event or 

occurrence of any subsequent breach, default or nonperformance hereof by the other party. 

 

 SECTION 2207.  SEVERABILITY:  If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to 

either party to this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect 

other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end, the 

provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

 

 SECTION 2208.  INTERPRETATION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement is the result of negotiation 

between the parties hereto and has been typed/printed by one party for the convenience of both parties, and the 

parties covenant that this Agreement shall not be construed in favor of or against any of the parties hereto. 

 

 SECTION 2209.  NO AGENCY: Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the parties 

hereto or by any third party as creating the relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint venturers, or any 

other similar such relationship between the parties hereto.  It is understood and agreed that neither the method of 

computation of rentals, fees and charges, nor any other provisions contained herein, nor any acts of the parties 

hereto creates a relationship other than the relationship of landlord and tenant. 

 

 SECTION 2210. JURISDICTION AND VENUE. The parties: (a) agree that this Agreement and all 

rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida; (b) agree that any suit, 

action or legal proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in a court of 

competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida; (c) consent to the jurisdiction of a court of competent 

jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida and expressly waive removal to a federal court; and (d) waive any 

objection either party may have to the laying of venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in a court of 

competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida. 

 

 SECTION 2211.  ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT: The parties hereto agree that this Agreement sets 

forth the entire agreement between the parties, and there are no promises or understandings other than those stated 

herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may be added to, modified, 

superseded, or otherwise altered, except as may be specifically authorized herein or by written instrument 

executed by the parties hereto. 

Page 41 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 29 of 32 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the date and year first above 

written. 

 
Signed, Sealed and Delivered   BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT  
in the presence of:     
 
      By:         
Witness      Mike Maino, Chairman 
       Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees  
 
       
      Attest:         
Witness      Jeff Grunow, Secretary 
       Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  
COUNTY OF BREVARD 
 

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________________, 2021, by MIKE MAINO, as Chairman of the Board of Trustees for 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT who personally appeared before me, [  ] is personally known 
to me or [  ] has produced ____________________________________________________ as identification. 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public 
Name: _____________________________ 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      TENANT: 
      STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP 

Page 42 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 30 of 32 

 
      By:        
Witness 
      Printed Name:       
 
 
      Printed Title:       
 
      Attest:        
Witness       (corporate seal) 
 

 
STATE OF __________________  
COUNTY OF __________________ 
 

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________________, 2021, by ________________________________, as 
___________________for STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP c/o STEWARD HEALTH CARE SYSTEM 
who personally appeared before me, [  ] is personally known to me or [  ] has produced 
____________________________________________________ as identification. 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public 
Name: _____________________________ 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 

Page 43 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 31 of 32 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF LEASED PROPERTY 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 122



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 32 of 32 

EXHIBIT B 
 

TENANT CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
 

Page 45 of 122



Page 46 of 122



Page 47 of 122



Page 48 of 122



Page 49 of 122



Page 50 of 122



Page 51 of 122



Page 52 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: Rules for the BOT Amendment
Section & Item: 9.A
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Michael R. Maino, Trustee, 1st Chair, John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: Resolution Amendment to Rules for Board of Trustees, Rules for 

the BOT proposed revision 28Sep21
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review of proposed amendment and adoption of Resolution #2021-16
 

Background and Summary Information
At a previous meeting, Chairman Maino requested the order of business (for regularly scheduled BOT meetings) 
contained within the Rules for the BOT be revised to add the following sections:
 

 Additions or Deletions to the Agenda
 Approval of the Agenda

 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT adopt Resolution 2021-16 adopting the revised Rules for the BOT as attached.

Page 53 of 122



 1 

RESOLUTION 2021-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 
DISTRICT AMENDING AND ADOPTING A REVISED SET OF 
RULES FOR THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT WITH OTHER 
PROVISIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has previously adopted multiple Resolutions 

amending and adopting the Rules for the Board of Trustees as identified in Article XI, 
Section 2 of the Rules for Board of Trustees; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees order of business for regularly scheduled 

meetings is listed within the Rules for the Board of Trustees; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation District is desirous of 

amending the order of business contained within Rules for the Board of Trustees 
previously adopted and revised consistent with the revised version attached and 
incorporated hereto as Exhibit A.  

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The Amended Rules for the Board of Trustees attached and specifically 

incorporated as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution are hereby formally adopted to serve as the 
Rules for the use by the members of the Board of Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation 
District.  The Amended Rules for the Board of Trustees attached and specifically 
incorporated as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution shall replace and supersede any prior 
version of the Rules for the Board of Trustees.  

 
Section 2.  Severability. 
 

 If any portion, clause, phrase, sentence or classification of this Resolution is held 
or declared to be either unconstitutional, invalid, inapplicable, inoperative or void, then 
such declaration shall not be construed to affect other portions of the resolution; it is 
hereby declared to be the expressed opinion of the Trustees of the Barefoot Bay 
Recreation District that any such unconstitutional, invalid, inapplicable, inoperative or 
void portion or portions of this Resolution did not induce its passage, and that without 

Page 54 of 122



 2 
 

the inclusion of any such portion or portions of this Resolution, the Trustees would have 
enacted the valid constitutional portions thereof. 
 
 Section 3.  Conflict with other Provisions. 
 
 All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 
superseded. 
 
 Section 4.  Effective Date. 
 
 This Resolution and the Amended Rules for the Board of Trustees attached and 
specifically incorporated as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution shall take effect seven (7) days 
after adoption. 

 
 The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ________________.  
The motion was seconded by Trustee __________________ and, upon being put to a 
vote, that vote was as follows: 
 

Chairman, Michael Maino ________ 

Trustee, Jim Nugent  ________ 

Trustee, Bruce Amoss  ________ 

Trustee, Jeff Grunow ________ 

Trustee, Michael Morrissey   ________ 

  

 The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution duly passed and adopted this 
28th day of September 2021. 
 
     BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 
     By:  ______________________________________ 
      MICHAEL R. MAINO, Chairman 
 
 
     Attest: __________________________________________ 
      JEFF GRUNOW, Secretary  

Page 55 of 122



 

  1 

RULES FOR THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 
ARTICLE I  

NAME AND ADDRESS OF ORGANIZATION 
 

Section 1 
 
 The name of the organization is BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, hereinafter 
referred to as THE DISTRICT. 
 

Section 2 
 
 The mailing address of the District is 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, Florida 32976-9233. 
 

ARTICLE II  
PURPOSE OF THE RULES 

 
Section 1 

 
 The purpose of these Rules is to implement the applicable Florida Statutes and in 
particular, Chapter 418.30-309, Laws of Florida, and Brevard County Ordinance 84-05, dated 23rd 
February, 1984, hereinafter referred to as the “Charter”; which said instruments of law and any 
amendments thereto are incorporated by reference. 
 

Section 2 
 
 A further purpose is to inform the residents and property owners of Barefoot Bay as to 
the operation and management of the District. 
 

ARTICLE III 
THE GOVERNING BODY 

 
Section 1 

 
 The governing body of the District is the Board of Trustees, hereinafter referred to as the 
“Board.” 
 

Section 2 
 
 The composition, qualifications for membership, election, term of office, method of 
replacement or removal and compensation, shall be as specified in Article V of the Charter, and 
other applicable state statutes. 

Exhibit A

Page 56 of 122



 

  2 

 
Section 3 

 
A.   The term of office of each elected Trustee shall commence on the first Tuesday 
after the first Monday in January following his or her election. Trustees shall serve for two 
(2) years, or until their successors have qualified for office.  The Board shall organize itself 
within fourteen (14) days next after the first Tuesday after the first Monday in January 
following each November election by electing from its number a Chairperson, two (2) 
Vice-Chairmen, a Secretary and a Treasurer. 
 
B.   Elected Trustees shall be sworn into office at a public ceremony at a convenient 
time, providing such ceremony shall stipulate the actual date of assumption of office as 
in subparagraph A above. 
 
C. The officers of the Board shall serve for one (1) year, commencing on the 
organizational meeting held in January, after the general election, as defined in paragraph 
A above. 
 
D. Members of the Board of Trustees of the District shall serve no more than three 
(3) successive complete two (2) year terms; however, term-limited Trustees may serve 
again two (2) years after the Trustee’s last successive complete term.  This limitation shall 
not apply to the portion of any unexpired term served by appointment to fill a vacant seat 
pursuant to Sec. 418.302 (5), Florida Statutes or Section 4, Article V of the Charter.  
 

Section 4 
 
 An in-term replacement of a Trustee shall be made by remaining members of the Board 
as provided for by Section 4, Article V of the Charter and such selected member shall be seated 
at the next regular meeting. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS 
 

Section 1 
 
 The Board shall hold all regular meetings in Barefoot Bay, Florida on the second Friday 
and the fourth Tuesday of each month at a time and place designated by the Board. 
 

Section 2 
 

Special or emergency meetings may be called and conducted in accordance with Article 
V, Section 1 of these Rules.  
 

 

Exhibit A

Page 57 of 122



 

  3 

Section 3 
 
 A majority of the entire membership of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. 
 

Section 4 
 
 The Chairperson, or Vice-Chairperson in his/her absence, shall conduct all meetings 
according to these Rules and Regulations and such other rules as are, from time to time, adopted 
by the Board; but not inconsistent with the laws of Florida or the Charter. 
 

Section 5 
 
 Workshop meetings may be conducted by the full Board or by a committee of the Board.  
Meetings will be chaired by a Trustee on a rotating basis.  A committee shall be chaired by a 
Trustee and shall include other members of the public as deemed necessary.  The committee 
may discuss, or prepare written recommendations for future consideration by the full Board.  
These meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Sunshine Law and 
shall be properly noticed for public attendance.  No business transactions or decisions binding 
the full Board are permitted. 
 

Section 6 
 

The following guidelines pertain to the public’s attendance at a public meeting and are 
subject to the Chairperson’s discretion: 
 
1. No attendee shall be allowed the floor until recognized by the Chairperson. 
 
2. No attendee may be allowed more than three (3) minutes on an Agenda Item or audience 

participation. Attendees may be allowed more than three minutes per Agenda item or 
audience participation per the discretion of the Chairman.  The attendee must fill out a card 
informing the Chairperson on the Number of the Agenda Item they wish to speak about prior 
to the meeting. 

 
3. No attendee shall be required to register his or her attendance.  However, those desiring to 

be heard must state their name and place of residence. 
 
4. No attendee may be allowed to enter into a debate with members of the Board. 
 
5. All questions shall be directed to the Chairperson, answered by the Chairperson or the 

Chairperson may refer to other members of the Board. 
 

Exhibit A

Page 58 of 122



 

  4 

6. Any attendee shall have the right to use a silent tape recorder, and to make an accurate 
record of what transpires.  A reporter may use this means for the benefit of his readers or 
listeners. 

 
7. Use of cameras will be allowed, so long as such use is not disruptive or the conduct of the 

meeting. 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS BY THE BOARD 

 
Section 1 

 
“The Board shall utilize the latest edition Robert’s Rules of Order as its official rules of 
procedure.  To the extent that a conflict shall exist between these Rules for the Board of Trustees 
and Robert’s Rules of Order, these Rules for the Board of Trustees shall control.”    
 

Section 2 
 
 All meetings of the Board for transaction of business shall be in harmony with the 
requirements of Chapter 189.417, F.S., in a building accessible to the public.  Any meeting other 
than a regular meeting or any recessed and reconvened meeting of the Board must be advertised 
with the day, time, place and purpose of the meeting at least seven (7) days prior to such meeting, 
except in the case of emergency meetings.  Meetings other than regularly scheduled or 
emergency meetings are deemed to be special meetings and may be called by the entire Board 
collectively, the Community Manager, and/or the Chairperson as necessary.   
 

A meeting called to deal with bona fide emergency, will be held as necessary upon the 
call of the Chairperson or at least two (2) requests to convene such an emergency meeting 
submitted separately by any two (2) Trustees to the Community Manager action taken at any 
emergency meeting will be ratified at the next regular Board meeting.  Reasonable notice of any 
such emergency meeting will be provided. 
 

Section 3 
 
 No approval of the annual budget shall be granted at an emergency meeting. 
 

Section 4 
 
 All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public and governed by the provisions of 
Chapter 286, F.S. 
 

 
 

Exhibit A

Page 59 of 122



 

  5 

Section 5 
 
 Minutes shall be taken, recorded and made available for public inspection at all 
reasonable time. 

Section 6 
 

 Under any Incidental, Manager, or Attorney report, any member of the Board may 
request that any initial motion made by any other member be determined by the Board to be of 
significant public importance.  If the initial motion is determined to be of significant public 
importance, the initial motion shall be required to be heard as a specific item on a subsequent 
agenda rather than acted on by motion under the report. 

 
Section 7 

 
 If an item is continued it should be placed under unfinished business until it is completed 
unless the Board of Trustees sets a specific agenda for it to be discussed. 

 
Section 8 

 
The Board shall have the power to create any advisory or fact-finding committee or sub-

committee of the Board as deemed appropriate and necessary by the Board collectively.  Any 
Trustee may propose the formation of any such committee of Board sub-committee which may 
only be formed upon a majority vote of the full membership of the Board.  At the time of 
formation/revision of any such committee or Board sub-committee, the Board shall define in 
writing the purpose and duration of the committee or Board sub-committee, the number of 
committee members, their length of terms (committee membership shall not exceed 5 years and 
Board sub-committee membership shall be limited to one-year or until the Board reorganizes 
itself under Article 3, Section 3 of this document), appoint the individual members of the 
committee of Board sub-committee, and assign a staff representative to support each 
committee.  Trustees shall not serve as members of advisory committees. Only Trustees shall 
serve on Board sub-committees. Each committee or Board sub-committee shall only have the 
powers granted to it by the Board at the time of establishment.  In the event of a change of 
membership of any committee, replacement members shall only be confirmed upon a majority 
vote of the membership of the Board.  The Board shall have the power to review the membership, 
purpose, and duration of any committee or Board sub-committee, including the right to dissolve 
and disband any committee or Board sub-committee, at any time upon a majority vote of the 
membership of the Board. 

 
The Board shall review all committees (excluding Violations committee) and adopt 

written purposes of each committee. Existing committee members (excluding Violations and 
ARCC committees) may be re-appointed for fixed terms with a staggered length of terms to 
ensure all committee members’ terms do not expire at the same time. Under no circumstances 
shall a paid staff person be appointed as a voting member of a committee. Applicants for said 
committees shall submit a resume for consideration of appointment. 

Exhibit A

Page 60 of 122



 

  6 

 
Written minutes of committee and Board sub-committee meetings must be kept, with a 

copy provided to the District Record Custodian for record keeping. Members of all advisory 
committees and Board sub-committee shall be advised of the Sunshine Laws applicable to the 
committee members.  The BBRD Guidelines for Committee/Task Force form shall be prepared 
for each committee and shall be turned in to the District Record Custodian for record keeping.   
 

 
ARTICLE VI 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES 
 

Section 1 
 

 The Board of Trustees have the general powers and duties as set forth in Article V of the 
District Charter. 
 
 Trustees shall: 
• Attend all Board of Trustees meetings and workshops, unless otherwise excused by the 
Chairperson 
• Evaluate the Community Manager and or management company at the prescribed times 
and provides an assessment of current performance and areas for improvement; 
• Respond to resident complaints by referring them to the appropriate entity, Board of 
Trustees or Community Manager for prompt resolution; and 
 
 The Board of Trustees shall determine who has signing authority for all banking and 
savings accounts of the District. The Board shall determine who has “view only” or “account 
change” authority. All access to Recreation District accounts must be approved through a regular 
meeting and be recorded in the official minutes of the Board of Trustees. Changes which affect 
the status, location and value of any accounts held by Barefoot Bay Recreation District shall be 
approved by the Board of Trustees. 
 
 Safety Deposit Box procedure. Anyone trustee or staff member requesting access to the 
safety deposit box must notify the Community Manager for the key. Access to the safety deposit 
box is granted to the Community Manager or his/her designee and one trustee who must also be 
present at the time of access. 
 

Florida Association of Special District (FASD) Conference Attendance: Newly elected or 
appointed Trustees, who have not previously attended a FASD Conference, should attend the 
next FASD Conference after her/his election or appointment. Additionally, each Trustee is eligible 
to attend the annual FASD Conference, as long as the Administration Budget (Finance and District 
Clerk Sub-Departments) has sufficient roll-up available budget. 
 
  

Exhibit A

Page 61 of 122



 

  7 

Section 2 
 
 Chairperson.  The Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the 
Board.  The Chairperson shall appoint regular and special committees as necessary.  He/she shall 
also be an ex-officio member of all committees appointed by him/her.  In the absence of the 
Chairperson, the 1st or 2nd Vice-Chairperson shall act in his/her place.  The Chairperson shall 
perform all the duties of Trustee. 
 

The Chairperson shall sign all contracts and documents requiring the signature of the 
Board representative.   He/She shall have signing, withdraw, deposit and information changing 
authority on all SBA accounts.  The Chairperson may review agenda items with the community 
manager prior to the release of any final agenda for all regular and special meetings of the Board. 
 

Section 3 
 
 Secretary.   
 
1.  Is responsible for directing and over-seeing that the Community Manager maintains all records 
of the business of the District and any other records required by Florida Statutes; 
2.  Is responsible for ensuring the Community Manager provides notice of all meetings and that 
minutes are taken by as required by Florida Statutes; 
3.  Reviews draft copies of minutes and oversees the necessary corrections before they are issued 
to the Board of Trustees or public; 
4.  Performs the regular duties of a Trustee; and 
5.  Takes roll call at the meetings and determine that a quorum is present. 

  
Section 4 

 
 Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall be responsible for ensuring that the Community Manager 
maintains accurate accountings of receipts and disbursements of monies to the operation of the 
District and shall direct the Community Manager to prepare all financial reports required by the 
Florida Statutes and any rules or regulations of any state of Florida or federal agency.  
 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Trustee who does not have the authority to sign any 
checks for the District shall be appointed by the Board to review the monthly bank statements of 
the District for accuracy. 
 
1.  The Treasurer or designee shall review all payments and supporting documents for accuracy 
and sign the Recreation District checks for payment of invoices. In the absence of the Treasurer, 
the second signature required for all checks over $5,000 may be any Trustee authorized with 
signing authority. 
2.  In the case of any emergency action, the Treasurer or designated person shall act with the 
Community Manager in the best financial interest of the Recreation District and bring the issue 
to the Board for approval at the next scheduled meeting. 

Exhibit A

Page 62 of 122



 

  8 

3.  The Treasurer shall initiate any actions approved by the Board for withdrawal and deposit of 
any funds from the SBA and Money Market accounts of the District. 
4.  The Treasurer shall prepare reports for the regular scheduled board meetings which accurately 
reflect the most recent balances of the accounts held by the District. The Treasurer shall prepare 
a monthly summary report after each close of business and review the bank statement monthly 
along with the list of deposits and disbursements reflected in that bank statement. 
 

Section 5 
 

The Trustee who is elected Chairperson of the Neighborhood Revitalization (NRP) 
Program BOT Sub-committee shall be authorized to approve (as recommended by the 
Community Manager or designee) the expenditures of NRP funds in excess of $7,500 and not to 
exceed $25,000 by staff toward the acquisition of a target property identified by the Sub-
Committee in accordance with  NRP rules as established by the BOT.   
 

The purchase of the property shall be ratified by the Board of Trustees at the next 
scheduled regular meeting of the Board of Trustees.   
 

The Chairman of the NRP BOT Sub-Committee shall be authorized to sign any proposed 
contracts for sale of BBRD owned properties acquired through the NRP (as recommended by the 
Community Manager or designee). Once a property is under contract for sale, the transaction 
shall be placed on the next regularly scheduled BOT meeting agenda for confirmation. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
Section 1 

 
 “A code of ethics for all state employees and non-judicial officers prohibiting conflict 
between public duty and private interest shall be prescribed by law.” (Article III, Sec. 18, Fla. 
Const.) This mandated Code of Ethics is found in Chapter 112 (Part III) of the Florida Statutes.   
 

Section 2 
 

Immediate family members of a Trustee shall be prohibited from formal employment or 
serving in a volunteer capacity (i.e. Golf-Pro Shop Player Assistants, Courtesy Golf Cart Drivers, 
etc.) with the District during the term(s) of service of said Trustee.  This prohibition shall begin 
upon the post-election or post-appointment formal commencement of the term of the Trustee. 
Any family members of a Trustee classified as a current employee (whether working or on 
approved leave) as of August 9, 2019 will be exempt from this prohibition until the employee 
separates employment.  Immediate family members falling within this prohibition shall be 
eligible for reemployment with District upon the expiration of the term(s) of the Trustee to which 
they are related.  For purposes of this prohibition, “immediate family member” is defined as one 

Exhibit A

Page 63 of 122



 

  9 

of the following: spouse or significant other, parent/step parent, child/step child, grandparent, 
grandchild, brother/brother-in-law, sister/sister-in-law, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, first cousin, 
in-laws (father, mother, son daughter).   

 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
ADMINISTRATIVE DUTIES 

 
Section 1 

 
 The Board of Trustees employs a Community Manager who is the chief appointed officer 
responsible for the daily operations and management of all BBRD personnel and functions.  The 
Board of Trustees, as a group in public meetings, provides direction to the Community Manager 
regarding policy and operational activities.  The Board of Trustees is responsible for the selection, 
evaluation and termination of the Community Manager and/or management company (in lieu of 
directly hiring a Community Manager). Individual Trustees may discuss any specific issue with the 
Community Manager in private, but shall not provide specific direction regarding District 
administrative operations of BBRD, including the operation of individual departments or and 
management of employees.   

 
Section 2 

 
 Trustees should work closely with volunteer groups or individuals including the District as 
well as with the Barefoot Bay Homeowners Association. 
   

Section 3 
Organizational Chart 

 
 An organizational chart of the District specifying the Trustee positions and operations 
structure of the staff will be maintained and modified as required. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
Section 1 

 
1. Thought for the Day 
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
3. Roll Call 
4. Additions or Deletions to the Agenda 
5. Approval of the Agenda 
4.6. Presentations and Proclamations 
5.7. Approval of Minutes 

Exhibit A

Page 64 of 122



 

  10 

6.8. Treasurer’s Report 
7.9. Audience Participation 
8.10. Unfinished Business 
9.11. New Business 
10.12. Community Manager’s Report 
11.13. Attorney’s Report 
12.14. Incidental Trustee Remarks 
13.15. Adjournment 

 
 

ARTICLE X 
AMENDMENTS 

 
Section 1 

 
 Amendments to these Rules and Regulations may be introduced by any Trustee in writing.  
A copy of the proposed amendment shall be posted by the staff on the official bulletin board and 
on www.bbrd.org at least seven (7) days prior to the next regular meeting of the Board, after 
which the Trustees shall vote on the proposed amendment. 
 
 Any amendment to these Rules adopted in accordance with this article shall become 
effective no sooner than seven (7) days after the date of the adoption of a resolution setting forth 
any amendments. 
 

 
ARTICLE XI 

PRECEDENT OF LAW 
 

Section 1 
 
 Any portion of the Rules in conflict with Florida Laws and the Charter shall be invalid. 
 

Section 2 
 
 These Rules shall supersede any and all previous Rules adopted, including but not limited 
to, Part I of Resolution 2004-1, 2007-03, 2008-07, 2010-19, 2014-01, 2015-07, 2016-02, 2016-21, 
2017-06, 2017-12, 2017-15, and 2021-06, and 2021-16. Amendments approved on September 
24, 2019 and October 22, 2019 were made without resolutions. 
 
  

Exhibit A

Page 65 of 122

http://www.bbrd.org/


 

  11 
 

Section 3 
 
 These Rules are effective upon passage by the Board and adoption of resolution defining 
said amendments. 
 
 
DATED: _____________________   __________________________________ 
       Michael Maino, 

Chairperson 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Jeff Grunow, 
        Secretary 

Exhibit A

Page 66 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: ADA Lifts for Pools Proposal
Section & Item: 9.B
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $42,795.00
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: Family Pools proposal, email from Comm. Mgr. to Trustees, 2011 

Memo to Trustees on ADA requirements for BBRD pool facilities
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Approval of proposal for installation of ADA lifts at all three pools.
 

Background and Summary Information
Earlier this year, continuing to repair the existing ADA lift at Pool #1 became unattainable due to inability to find 
replacement parts and frequency of needed repairs. During the research phase of the procurement, staff received 
conflicting information regarding the need to add ADA lifts at Pool #2 and #3 from suppliers. On July 28, 2021, BBRD 
General Counsel Repperger opined that BBRD was required to have ADA lifts at all three pools as originally opined in a 
2011 memo to the BOT Chairman and (former) Community Manager. As the 2011 memorandum was unknown to staff, 
the Community Manager immediately instructed the Property Services Manager to solicit the installation of ADA lifts at 
all three pools from BBRD’s pool services vendor of record which is listed below.
 
$42,795.00 Family Pools
 
Staff continues to work with interested parties to seek lower cost comparable units (including installation and 
permitting).
 
Sufficient fund balance is available for the cost of the project.
 
Hence, (unless a lower cost comparable unit is located) staff recommends the BOT approve the $42,795.00 proposal 
from Family Pools for the installation of ADA pool lifts at all three pools and instruct staff to process a budget 
amendment recognizing the use of fund balance for the project.
 

Page 67 of 122



Family Pools Inc.

873 SW South Macedo Blvd.
Port St Lucie, FL  34983
+1 7728788452
familypoolsinc@outlook.com

ESTIMATE # 982101
DATE 09/08/2021

BILL TO
Barefoot bay Recreation 
District
625 Barefoot Blvd.
Barefoot Bay, FL  32976

SHIP TO
Barefoot Bay Recreation District

DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

3 8,975.00 26,925.00

3 3,190.00 9,570.00

ADA Lift
SCOUT EXCEL LIFT WHT W BLU 
SEAT  
SCOUT POOL LIFTS STANDARD 
ANCHOR PERMITS
FOOTERS FOR INSTALL THIS IS A 
PRICE FOR EACH LIFT NEEDED
Independent Contractor Agreement 
Fees - These Fees Are Billed For The 
Lifts
All quoted pricing is valid UNTIL 
SEPTEMBER 29, 2021
Each Pool Location To Recieve (1) 
Lift Per Estimate Above 
1344 Gardenia Dr, Sebastian, FL 
32976
1080 Parkway Ln, Sebastian, FL 
32976
625 Barefoot Blvd, Sebastian, FL 
32976
Drafting & Engineering
Pool Equipment & Surge Tank 
Relocation/Modification
1344 Gardenia Dr, Sebastian, FL 

1 4,500.00 4,500.00

Page 68 of 122



DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

1 1,800.00 1,800.00Independent Contractor Agreement Fees - These Fees 
Are Billed Only For The Drafting & Engineering
Please Provide The Needed List Of Documents:
We Need A Site Plan, Survey & DOH Docs For This Pool
Estimate valid until September 29, 2021

GRAND TOTAL $42,795.00

PAYMENT TERMS:  
DEPOSIT $22,000.00
DUE UPON $12,795.00
DUE UPON LIFT INSTALL COMPLETION $8,000.00

Page 69 of 122



1

John Coffey

From: John Coffey
Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2021 9:10 AM
Cc: Rich Armington; Matt Goetz; Cliff Repperger
Subject: FW: Pool lifts and ADA compliance 
Attachments: Memorandum to Trustees on ADA requirements for BBRD pool facilities.pdf; Chapter 2, Section 242, 

ADA Guidelines.pdf; Chapter 10, Section 1009, ADA Guidelines.pdf

Trustees, 
 
Last night (via the below email and attachments) I became aware of an opinion from Cliff that we are required under 
ADA to have handicap lifts at all three pools. The reason this issue came to our attention is we are no longer able to 
secure parts to repair the current lift at Pool #1 and in researching options for replacement we ran into information 
suggesting all pools require one.  Hence, Matt requested Cliff’s opinion and he provided the below email and 
attachments. Sadly, I was not informed of this when I started on October 14, 2013, nor did former Chairman Guinther 
ever mention it to me or ask for lifts to be put in FY15 or FY16 Budgets, nor did Matt’s predecessor ever mention this to 
me.   
 
Hence, I have asked Matt to contact our Pools continuing services contractor for a bid to install three lifts.  I anticipate 
the cost to be substantial but once we have the price I will give you options on how to absorb it (i.e., projects that can 
deferred in FY22 or operational savings).  If you read Cliff’s December 23, 2011 opinion, you will notice a clause where 
an entity does not have to install them if it “create an undue (Financial or administrative) hardship…”  While you may 
prefer not to make the expenditures for the new lifts, no one can seriously claim a financial hardship given our level of 
discretionary resources for R&M/Capital project. 
 
I am sure I will have a 3rd bad news email for you later in the day… 
 
 
Sincerely, 
  

John W. Coffey, ICMA‐CM 

Community Manager 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Blvd. 
Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 
Phone: 772.664.3141 
Fax: 772.664.1928 
  
  
  
  
PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District (BBRD) is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This means that the information BBRD 
receives online including your e‐mail address might be disclosed to any person making a public records request. If you have any question about the Florida public 
records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, e‐mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e‐mail address released in response 
to a public‐records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 
 
 
 

Page 70 of 122



2

From: Cliff Repperger <cliff@whitebirdlaw.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 27, 2021 8:46 PM 
To: Matt Goetz <mattgoetz@bbrd.org> 
Cc: John Coffey <jcoffey@bbrd.org> 
Subject: RE: Pool lifts and ADA compliance  
 
Matt,  
 
It’s somewhat of an involved issue, but the analysis is relatively simple.  Basically, all BBRD pools are required to be ADA 
compliant (notwithstanding the potential exemption below).  The compliance (or lack of compliance) at Pool 1, has 
nothing to do with Pool 2 or Pool 3 and vice versa.   
 
Attached is a Memorandum I wrote in 2011 regarding ADA compliance for BBRD’s Swimming Facilities.  At the time I 
wrote the Memorandum, compliance was required by March 15, 2012.  This was later extended to January 31, 2013, 
which is pretty much irrelevant now. 
 
The Applicable Guidelines haven’t changed much since the time of my memo.  Below is link to the guidelines.  Search 
Sections 1009 and 242 to compare the current requirements to the attached pdfs (requirements at the time of the 
Memorandum).   
 
https://www.ada.gov/2010ADAstandards_index.htm 
 
The bottom line, as addressed in my Memorandum (and in the link you provided), is that existing pools don’t need to be 
made compliant if doing so is not “readily achievable.”  Providing access is not “readily achievable” if it would involve 
“significant difficulty or expense.” As cited in my Memorandum, that expense would have to be pretty significant to 
support an assertion that compliance (via lift) is not “readily achievable.” 
 
After you and John have a chance to absorb this information, let me know if you want to discuss this in greater detail. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Cliff 
 

Clifford R. Repperger, Jr., Esq. 
Partner 
 
p. 321.327.5580   |   f. 321.327.5655 
 
730 E. Strawbridge Avenue, Suite 209 
Melbourne, FL 32901 
cliff@whitebirdlaw.com 
whitebirdlaw.com 
 

 
 
This e-mail is intended only for the individual(s) or entity(s) named within the message. This e-mail might contain legally privileged and confidential information. 
If you properly received this e-mail as a client or retained expert, please hold it in confidence to protect the attorney-client or work product privileges. Should the 

Page 71 of 122



3

intended recipient forward or disclose this message to another person or party, that action could constitute a waiver of the attorney-client privilege. If the reader of 
this message is not the intended recipient, or the agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, 
distribution or copying of this communication is prohibited by the sender and to do so might constitute a violation of the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 
18 U.S.C. section 2510-2521. If this communication was received in error we apologize for the intrusion. Please notify us by reply e-mail and delete the original 
message without reading same. Nothing in this e-mail message shall, in and of itself, create an attorney-client relationship with the sender. 
 
 

From: Matt Goetz <mattgoetz@bbrd.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 27, 2021 3:54 PM 
To: Cliff Repperger <cliff@whitebirdlaw.com> 
Subject: Pool lifts and ADA compliance  
 

Good afternoon, Cliff, 
 
We are trying to understand the ADA compliance for ADA lifts at the pools. Somewhere in the last 10 years 
BBRD purchased a portable lift for resident and guest use which unfortunately has decided to go on 
permanent break and our understanding is that portable lifts no longer meet the standards. Additionally, we 
have been told that if we install 1 permanent mounted lift at pool 1 for instance, we are then required by ADA 
law to install them at each of the other 2 pools. I have attached 1 of the documents i have found through the 
ADA however it feels like it jumps around a bit, so we are seeking a legal opinion on where we go from here. 
As always please feel free to contact me with any questions. 
 
 

Questions and Answers: Accessibility Requirements for Existing Swimming 
Pools at Hotels and Other Public Accommodations - ADA.gov homepage 
The ADA Home Page provides access to Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations for businesses 
and State and local governments, technical assistance materials, ADA Standards for Accessible Design, 
links to Federal agencies with ADA responsibilities and information, updates on new ADA requirements, 
streaming video, information about Department of Justice ADA settlement agreements ... 

www.ada.gov 

Thank you, 
 
Matthew Goetz  
Property service manager  
Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
Office: (772)664‐2063 
Cell: (772)494‐9985 

Page 72 of 122



Page 73 of 122



Page 74 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: Building A Renovations Project: Change Order #14 

Confirmation
Section & Item: 9.C
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $3,556.05
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-

CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Bldg A Renovations Change Order tracker, signed change order 

14
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Confirmation of the Community Manager’s approval of Change Orders #14A, #14B, and 14C for minor alterations and a 
credit for damages to BBRD property.
 

Background and Summary Information
During the course of installing the kitchen equipment, two minor issues arose requiring modest change orders. To keep 
the project moving forward, the Community Manager verbally approved the modifications and requested the general 
contractor to submit them as part of a final change order packet. Additionally, the vendor submitted a credit change 
order (#14C) for damages to one of the two pots outside of Building A that reduced the combined cost. 
 
These change orders are expected to be the final change orders of the project. Sufficient fund balance exists to cover 
this unexpected expense.  
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Change Orders #14A, #14B, and #14C 
in the amount of $3,556.05 for minor alterations offset by a credit for damages to Parkit Construction, Inc. and instruct 
staff to prepare the necessary budget amendment to fund the cost.

Page 75 of 122



Building A Renovations Project Contract Cost History

Date

Change 

Order # Description

Change Order 

Cost

Revised 

Contract Cost Approved By

26-May-20 N/A Original contract 564,435.00    BOT

N/A N/A

Various direct equipment purchases by 

BBRD (previous and remaining 

planned) as allowed by the contract (191,992.55)  372,442.45    N/A

17-Nov-20 1

Replace structural support under 

rooftop HVAC systems ( 30 extra days) 22,245.60      394,688.05    Comm. Mgr.

17-Nov-20 2

Replace AC duct and exhaust fan 

system in eastside air handler room 10,044.89      404,732.94    Comm. Mgr.

17-Nov-20 3

Add Electrical run, step down 

transformer, lights, and ceil fan outlet 

to Pavilion (cost to be offset by CVO 

donation of $2,555.78) 17,767.50      422,500.44    BOT

17-Nov-20 4

Remove and replace storage area floor 

to facilitate plumbing changes 1,725.00        424,225.44    Comm. Mgr.

14-Jan-21 5

Removal of unforeseen vent pipe (was 

abandoned in place year unknown) 747.50            424,972.94    Comm. Mgr.

14-Jan-21 6

Removal of obsolete rooftop HVAC 

(abandoned in place circa 2007) 977.50            425,950.44    Comm. Mgr.

14-Jan-21 7

Conversion of propane tank usage to 

connection of existing 1,000 gallon 

underground tank) (7 extra days) 5,635.00        431,585.44    Comm. Mgr.

14-Jan-21 8

Removal of electrical outlet conflicting 

with new opening in a wall and 

installation of new electrical home run 3,450.00        435,035.44    Comm. Mgr.

16-Mar-21 9

Deconfliction of existing duct work for 

new hood system 1,897.00        436,932.44    BOT

16-Mar-21 10 Additional  hand sink 4,046.85        440,979.29    BOT

16-Mar-21 10a Time extension of 45 days -                  440,979.29    BOT

27-Apr-21 11

Main kitchen entrance ceiling 

adjustment 1,137.74        442,117.03    BOT

27-Apr-21 12 Increased size of freezer slab 2,519.52        444,636.55    BOT

27-Apr-21 12a Time extension of 39 days -                  444,636.55    BOT

27-Aug-21 13 Hood exhaust pipes platform 34,292.13      478,928.68    Comm. Mgr.

7-Sep-21 14A Revised disconnect for dish table 2,612.80        481,541.48    Comm. Mgr.

7-Sep-21 14B Additional electrical relay box 1,443.25        482,984.73    Comm. Mgr.

7-Sep-21 14C Credit for damage (500.00)          482,484.73    Comm. Mgr.

Total 110,042.28   

Direct purchases per contract 204,667.55    

Plug in equipment outside of contract 44,248.26      

Estimated Project Total 731,400.54   

FY22-26 5yrFM&CIP Budget Estimate 607,000.00    

Overage 124,400.54    20.49%

9/14/2021 4:24 PM

Page 76 of 122



Page 77 of 122



Page 78 of 122



Page 79 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: Lease Agreement with Brevard County (Utility Services 

Department)
Section & Item: 9.D
Department: Administration
Fiscal Impact: Rental Max $15,243.52 per annum (including CAM) for 

five (5) year renewal term.
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, Cliff Repperger, General 

Counsel, General Counsel
Attachments: 9030216 Brevard Cnty Water Executed 2016 lease
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Approval of Amendment and Renewal of Lease Agreement with Brevard County (for Utility Services Department).
 

Background and Summary Information
The current Lease Agreement with Brevard County for the Brevard County Utility Service Department is for a period 
of five (5) years commencing October 1, 2016, and ending on September 30, 2021.
 
The parties propose to amend and renew the current Lease Agreement beginning October 1, 2021, and ending 
September 30, 2026, with an annual increase in base rent over the entire renewal period of ten percent (10%).

Page 80 of 122



Page 81 of 122



Page 82 of 122



Page 83 of 122



Page 84 of 122



Page 85 of 122



Page 86 of 122



Page 87 of 122



Page 88 of 122



Page 89 of 122



Page 90 of 122



Page 91 of 122



Page 92 of 122



Page 93 of 122



Page 94 of 122



Page 95 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: FY21 Budget Amendment - Change Order 13 to the Building A 

Renovations Project
Section & Item: 9.E
Department: Administration, Finance
Fiscal Impact: $34,292.13
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: 210514 Resolution 2021-19 - Change Order 13 to the Building A 

Renovation Project, 09.10.2021 Building A Renovations Project Change 
Order 13 Memo

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel:
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Board Approval of Budget Resolution 2021-19 increasing budgeted expenditures Change Order 13 to the Building A 
Renovations Project.
 

Background and Summary Information
Staff was directed at the September 10th, 2021 BOT regular meeting, to prepare the necessary budget amendment to 
fund Change Order 13 (for the fabrication, delivery and installation of a work platform around the hood exhaust) to the 
Building A Renovations Project using Fund Balance.

Staff recommends the BOT approve Resolution 2021-19 increasing budgeted expenditures for the Building A 
Renovations Project using Fund Balance.

Page 96 of 122



  Page 1 of 1 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 2020-08; 

AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, the Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees adopted Resolution 

2020-08, an operating Budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending 
September 30, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is desirous of amending the previously adopted 

Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has ascertained that the following amendments are 

necessary to provide for the operation of the District for the Fiscal Year 2020-21: 
 
An Amendment in the amount of $34,292.13 to be added to the Building A Renovation 
Project expenditure line-item budget in the R&M/Capital Projects Department using 
Fund Balance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY FLORIDA:  

 

Section 1. The amendment shall be made to the operating Budget for the Fiscal Year 
beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021. 

 
Section 2. The Community Manager and the Finance Manager are directed to adjust FY 

2020/21 Adopted Budget. 
 
Section 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ________________.  The motion 

was seconded by Trustee __________________ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote was as follows: 
 

Chairman, Michael Maino 
Trustee, Bruce Amoss 
Trustee, Jeff Grunow 
Trustee, James Nugent 
Trustee, Michael Morrissey 

 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted on this 28th day of 
September, 2021. 
 BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 By:  ______________________________________ 
 Michael Maino, 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Jeff Grunow, 
 SECRETARY 

Page 97 of 122



�����������	
���
� ���������������������� ������������� !���"#��$#$"���%�& �	�%�������'���(�����
�)��*�+�&�,-�����.�����/01�,�������������2��34�5�6�� � 789������ �4�� :5;<=�����>�?�3@�2�A��A2�>�6 ��2�� BCD�$7$8"C=34��2�� ;����93��E��?�3���������F�2�A�;�4�G����H3I4�J�=3KK����6=;LM=;��=3  N4����;�4�G��L���2I �4�A� ON�>��4G�L�:�43F���34A�?�3@�2��=P�"C��O>�G�L�:�43F���34A�=I�4G��P��������2Q��:�F��R���!��9�4���>�=3N4A�>� S<LL���3F���!�� H3I4�J8�=3KK����6=;LM=;��=3  N4����;�4�G���'�T	�
�����+�����UV��.�=34K�� ���34�3K��I��=3  N4����;�4�G��WA�����3F�>�3K�=I�4G��P�����X"C��3�������R3�Q��>��K3� ���3N4���I��Q��2I�4��YI�NA������A��A���ZN�����!��O��F����=3N4���AN!A�ZN�4���3�����3F�>�3K��I����3@�2�WA�!N�>��4G���� ��8���+[���	�������\	����V�]����������O��F����=3N4���ON�>��4G������� �4������3F����I��ON�>��4G�L�:�43F���34A���3@�2��234A��N2��34��>�4A��4�$#$#�R��I3N��R3�Q��>��K3� A���3N4���I��I33���YI�NA������A�34��I��Q��2I�4��33K8�P4�HN4��̂��$#$"��L�=3N4���ON�>��4G�64A��2�3���4K3� ����I��G�4���>�234���2�3���I����I����3@�2��R3N>��43����2��F���I��K�4�>��4A��2��34�����3F�>�R��I3N������4G�A�����>��K3� 8�P4�HN4��$_��$#$"��OO:�WA��4G�4����3K���23���R�A��!>���3�AN!A��4�������I���O��F����=3N4��WA�>�A�M �4N�����ZN��� �4��3K��I���>��K3� �R�A�!�A���34��I����N4�ZN���4����������34�3K��>3����������?��F�4��34�=3���̀��?=a8�b�42���A��KK��N�I3��E����I����A�G4��4��23A��4G�3K��I��������34��3��I��3��G�4�>�234A��N2��34��>�4A8��P4�LNGNA��$_��$#$"��A��KK���2��F����I����3�3A���=I�4G��P�����X"C�K3��K�!��2���34����>�F�����4���4A��>>���34�3K��I���>��K3� �̀�Y2>N��4G� �43���33K�4G��Y��4A���3�!����3F�����!�����I���������a��4��I��� 3N4��3K�BCD�$7$8"C8�64�234AN>����34�R��I�OPc�=I��� �4�;��43���I��=3  N4����;�4�G�������3F����I��2I�4G��3������3��Y��������I��23 �>���34�3K��I����3@�2��̀�A�� ������� ��K�� ���A�̂Md�R��QA��K�����I��!N�>��4G���� ����A�����3F��a8�cI��=3  N4����;�4�G����I�4�43��K�����I����A��3K��I��OPc�3K�I�A��2��34��4���I���234K�� ���34�3K�I�A�����3F�>�̀�Y2����4G�I�A�A��4��4G��N�I3����a�R3N>��!���>�2���34��I�A��G�4���K3�����4A����42���N��3A�A8��NKK�2��4��KN4��!�>�42���Y�A�A��3�23F����I�A�N4�Y��2�����Y��4A�8�PF���>>���I��R3�Q��A�7787e�23 �>�����4��A��KK��4��2�����A��I��OPc��4����A���4�A�R�>>�!��I�����R��I��I����3@�2��342������A�23 �>����8�b�42���A��KK���23  �4�A��I��OPc�234K�� ��I��=3  N4����;�4�G��WA�����3F�>�3K�=I�4G��P�����X"C��4��I��� 3N4��3K�BCD�$7$8"C�K3���4A��>>���34�3K���Q��2I�4�I33���YI�NA������A��>��K3� ��3�?��Q���=34A��N2��34��6428��4���4A��N2��A��KK��3����������I��4�2�AA����!N�G���� �4� �4���3�KN4���I��23A�8
fghi�jk�lm�nop

Exhibit

Page 98 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: FY21 Budget Amendment - Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball/Tennis 

Courts.
Section & Item: 9.F
Department: Administration, Finance
Fiscal Impact: $10,950
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: 210514 Resolution 2021-20 - Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball and 

Tennis Courts, 09.10.2021 Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball-Tennis 
Courts

Reviewed by 
General Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Board Approval of Budget Resolution 2021-20 increasing budgeted expenditures for the Restroom Trailer by Pickle 
Ball/Tennis Courts.
 

Background and Summary Information
Staff was directed at the September 10th, 2021 BOT regular meeting, to prepare the necessary budget amendment to 
increase the funding for the Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball and Tennis Courts using $10,950 of Fund Balance.

Staff recommends the BOT approve Resolution 2021-20 increasing budgeted expenditures for the Restroom Trailer by 
Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts using Fund Balance.

Page 99 of 122



  Page 1 of 1 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-20 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 2020-08; 

AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, the Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees adopted Resolution 

2020-08, an operating Budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending 
September 30, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is desirous of amending the previously adopted 

Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has ascertained that the following amendments are 

necessary to provide for the operation of the District for the Fiscal Year 2020-21: 
 
An Amendment in the amount of $10,950 to be added to the Restroom Trailer by Pickle 
Ball/Tennis Courts expenditure line-item budget in the R&M/Capital Projects 
Department using Fund Balance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY FLORIDA:  
 

Section 1. The amendment shall be made to the operating Budget for the Fiscal Year 
beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021. 

 
Section 2. The Community Manager and the Finance Manager are directed to adjust FY 

2020/21 Adopted Budget. 
 
Section 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ________________.  The motion 

was seconded by Trustee __________________ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote was as follows: 
 

Chairman, Michael Maino 
Trustee, Bruce Amoss 
Trustee, Jeff Grunow 
Trustee, James Nugent 
Trustee, Michael Morrissey 

 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted on this 28th day of 
September, 2021. 
 BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 By:  ______________________________________ 
 Michael Maino, 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Jeff Grunow, 
 SECRETARY 

Page 100 of 122



�����������	
���
� ���������������������� ������������� !���"#��$#$"���%�& '�
����������%���()�*�+,%����%%-�����
�.�	��
��/�������.�����+���0��12�3�4�� � 567������ �2�� 839:;�����<�=�1>�0�?��?0�<�4 ��0�� 7?�� �����@A#�5B#6##�C@BD�5D#�E1������<����2���?�� �����@$�5F#�E1����<�G���H�C�I$"�JK�L���1E�@B#�###H;12��0�� 9����M1��N��=�1���������G�0�?�9�2�L����O1P2�Q�;1EE����4;9RS;9��;1  K2����9�2�L��R���0P �2�?� =1���!<��8�?��11 �T���<��?�UU;�!����912�12�1�T���<���!��8�G��V���!��M�2���<�;1K2?�<� W:RR���1G���!�� O1P2�Q6�;1EE����4;9RS;9��;1  K2����9�2�L���'�X	�
�����+�����()��Y�RV����1E�012���0��E1����10K�� �2��1E�����?��11 �����<�������P��=�0Z<��J�<<:T�22�?�;1K��?��1����<�0���P��0K���2���1���S�1����?6���+,���	�������[	����)�\����������TP���I$"�R���1G���JK�L���012���2?�@B#�###6##�E1���P���0]K�?���12��2���2?��<<���12�1E�����?��11 �����<����1����<�0���P���1���S�1����?�2�����P��=�0Z<��J�<<:T�22�?�;1K��?6����EE�?1<�0������P��E1<<1V�2L�!��?�E1�����P���S?����12���?��11 �����<���C12��R�R��00�??�!<���2���V1���LK<��H��2����P����K<�0���1��VP��<�?�?�� ��@BD�5D#6##�=1���!<��8�?��11 �T���<���UU;�C�?�6�@$�5F#6##���<�G����E��H@B̂�55B6##�912�12�1�T���<���UU;�C�?�6�@$�DAB6##���<�G����E��H��K��2L��P��!���?1<�0�����12���10�??�?��EE����G�<����1�W1��P�;��1<�2���1��2?��0���P��]K�<����1E��P��K2����G��<�!<��E�1 �=1���!<��8�?��11 �T���<��?�UU;6����EE�V�?�21���!<���1��2?��0���P��912�12�1�T���<���UU;�K2����?��P��!K?�2�??��?�<10������2�JKEE�<1��WI6��K���1��P����?��1E��2�����2�1��P��212SP�2��0���?����12?�C12��<1V�?���H��2��012E�LK����12�1E��P������<����?��EE�!�<��G�?��P��=1���!<��8�?��11 �T���<���UU;�K2����?��P��!�?��E���E1��JJ8�6�TP���������?P1K<��21����?��EE�V�<<�2�����1��1K����0120������_��2?�12��1��P��?���V�<Z�?1K�P�1E��P����22�?�01K��?��1��2?K���R�R��00�??�!�<�����2����LK<����K ��2L�1E��P��V�?�����2Z�V�<<�!����]K������?��P��K2���V�<<�21��!��0122�0�����1��P��J��G����;1K2���?�2������?�V���?�?�� 6�U�?�<���?��EE��<�2?�12� �2� �<� 1G� �2��1E��P������<����P�1KLP��P������6��K0P� 1G� �2�?�V�<<�!��<� ������1�<��L��L��P��?�C�6�6��J���E11��!���P��U�Z����?��G�<H��2���K��2L�����1�0P�2L���1��0�<��G�2�?��1�<� ����1��2���<��� �L��E�1 �V�2��!1�2���!��?��2�:1�������<� !�!���Z�L�6�U�?�<���?KEE�0��2��EK2��!�<�20���?��G��<�!<��E1���P��!K�L���1G���L�6�̀�20���?��EE���01  �2�?��P��JaT��V����012���0���1�=1���!<��8�?��11 �T���<��?�UU;��2��P��� 1K2��1E�@BD�5D#6##��<K?���<�G����E1�����P����?����12�C12��P�2��0����2���V1���LK<��H�P����K<�0���1����?��11 �����<����2���2?��K0��?��EE��1�����������!K�L���� �2� �2��E�1 �EK2��!�<�20���1�01G����P��1G���L�6�
bcde�fg�hi�jkl

Exhibit

Page 101 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: FY22 Budget Amendment - Employee Health and Ancillary 

Insurance Plans Savings Allocations
Section & Item: 9.G
Department: Administration, Finance
Fiscal Impact: $ 0
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: 210928 Resolution 2021-17 Health Insurance Savings, 08.24.2021 

Health Insurance Memo
Reviewed by General 
Counsel:
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Approve Resolution 2021-17, amending the budget to transfer funds to the R&M Capital Projects Department from the 
Administration, Food & Beverage, Resident Relations, Golf and Property Services Departments
 

Background and Summary Information
On August 24th, 2021, the BOT approved the Employee Health and Ancillary Insurance plans and awarded the contracts 
that resulted in a budgeted savings of $15,937.10.
Allocation Table:

 
Staff recommends the BOT approve the resolution 2021-17 amending the Budget, reallocating funds to Contingency in 
the R&M/Capital Projects Department from various Departments with a zero total financial impact.

Page 102 of 122



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305 
 

  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 2021-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 2021-09; 

AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, the Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees adopted Resolution 

2021-09, an operating Budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending 
September 30, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is desirous of amending the previously adopted 

Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has ascertained that the following amendments are 

necessary to provide for the operation of the District for the Fiscal Year 2021-22: 
 

An Amendment to transfer $3,641 from the Administration Department to be added 
to the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department; 
 
An Amendment to transfer $2,812 from the Food &Beverage Department to be added 
to the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department; 
 
An Amendment to transfer $2,822 from the Resident Relations Department to be 
added to the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department; 
 
An Amendment to transfer $566 from the Golf/Proshop Department to be added to 
the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department; and 
 
An Amendment to transfer $6,096.10 from the Property Services Department to be 
added to the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY FLORIDA:  

 

Section 1. The amendment shall be made to the operating Budget for the Fiscal Year 
beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022. 

 

Section 2. The Community Manager and the Finance Manager are directed to adjust FY 
2021/22 Adopted Budget. 

 

Section 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ________________.  The motion 

was seconded by Trustee __________________ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote was as follows: 
 

Chairman, Michael Maino 
Trustee, Bruce Amoss 
Trustee, Jeff Grunow 

Page 103 of 122



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305 
 

  Page 2 of 2 

 

Trustee, James Nugent 
Trustee, Michael Morrissey 

 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted on this 28th day of 
September 2021. 
 BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 By:  ______________________________________ 
 Michael Maino, 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Jeff Grunow, 
 SECRETARY 

 

Page 104 of 122



�����������	
���
� ���������������������� ���������������� !�� " #���$�% &��'�$��(�)�*��+��
,�-��.��
������/�
	���0���1�������-�����0�2�3�456�7�8��9�:;���<�=�9�6�� ��946��=��456���4��=43��>?�=@A4�3�?�89<�3�� B#!C�"DE;""�FAG  �H������5I�B#CC�!E!;""J>56��3�� 2��<K�64��H=5L6���4��=43��>?�=@��M5K6�>5II����>599�64���N�6���=����3K9�6��� AN8��=�6�L�?�5II�=��O=5<5��?;A8�;OPQ;H�=�I55�H���?4�R4?4����O=5<5��?;A8�;S>;H�=�I55�H���S>��OQ8��S>�T�5����OQ8��U4�R4?4���T�5��V�W4�L���R��Q�6�=�?�>5�6��?�XY��<<=5W���R�� M5K6�S;�>5II����8>N�Z>N��>599�64���N�6���=�[�\	�
�����0�����'(��]��L�=��5I�356�=�3��I5=�U4�R4?4���7�S5=@�=�̂�>59<�6���456�86��=�63��35W�=�����5�A?5=4���86��=�63���??4�63��FA8�J�I5=�AG  ;���0+���	�������_	����(�/�����������K��H̀��3K�6������6�=�?�?4�R4?4����6��L5=@�=�̂�359<�6���456�46��=�63��359<�64���46�AG#D�I=59�O�R?43�V4�@�86��=�63�����63��FOV8�J��5�A?5=4���N�6434<�?�86��=�63���=����FAN8�J;����L4�K�<=4W����K59�5L6�=�̂�46��=�63���HHV�̂��?4�R4?4���46��=�63��<=�94�9���=��R�����56��K��K4��5=��5I�3?�49����95�6��5I�35W�=������6��5W�=�??�46����=���=�6��;������5��K��9��64�����5I��K��35�������II�=�ZR4���K��35W�=�����K4�����=;�U4@�L4����HHV�̂��L5=@�=�̂�359<�6���456�46��=�63��<=�94�9���=��R�����56��a<�=4�63�����<���5I�L5=@�<�=I5=9���R���9<?5�������6��46����=���=�6��;�2<�34I43�??����a<�=4�63��4��=�����R�����56��K��b95�4I4�=c�5I��K���K=���<=45=����=�̂��a<�=4�63�;���95�4I4�=�5I�#;""�4���W�=���;�HHV�̂��95�4I4�=�K���3K�6����<�=��K��I5??5L46��
�����K��I5??5L46���K=���359<�64���=��<56�����dA?5=4���N�6434<�?�86��=�63���=����FAN8�J��=�<=���6����R���K��A?5=4���U������5I�>4�4��dA?5=4���86��=�63���??4�63��FA8�J��=�<=���6����R��eQ82�86��=�63�dO�R?43�V4�@�86��=�63�����63��FOV8�J�=�<=���6����R��H=5L6��6��H=5L6�86��=�63�� fghi�jkl�mn�okl

Exhibit

Page 105 of 122



���������	
�����������������������	�����������������������������	
�����	�������� !��"#$$�%&'()* "+,- ",. /0,-%12)�/345678������9 �:;�� ����������<=�>?@ ���������@A��<? @?�==>8	�� �:;�� �	���� �	�������
������� A<?B�������C	��	�	�9 �:;�� ����������D=�DE> ����������@�<=F E@�A<@C	G����C	��	�	�9 �:;�� �:;�� ������ ;BC� :;�H����
�I�J�	

	��
;8���	��J��	�	��
�C	��	�	�9 �:;�� �	���� ���������E>��EF �=�E?DK�	�� �:;�� �	���� ���������������>F? FD<�����I������8�9
	����L����� �:;�� �������������A�>=� ���������EE�><? A�?>=K9����C	��	�	�9 �:;�� �	���� �	���� ��>??C	��	�	�9�M��N����� �������EF��?@E ��������ED��=EF �������EE=�=�? EEA�E=DO��P��
�K�����
��	�� ����������F�A>A �����������D�F== ������������AEA �E�?E�%12)�/34567�-3*14 �������QRRSTUT ��������QVRSWQT �������QT$S$UU QUTS$XVYZ*53[14���
�����B����
�K������� �:;�� �:;�� ������������D�<F? :;��������QRRSTUT ��������QVRSWQT �������QTRSX\U QUTS$XV������������
������������������������8B�����������������	G�����	��	�	�9��
������������	����
	������
�������������	�	��������
�����������	�9�	����	���9���
]�M�	��
�����������	�9�������
����������	
�����	��]�M��������	���
�
 	���	������������������	
�������
�������	�	��������̂L�������������� 	������
��
!_ àbc�bdefghb�ai�djjkalfmdcnop�qrstsss�joub�cvn�wabc�ai�ofxuak�ofdyfofcp�fgbukdgwn�db�wamjdknz�ca�{|}~_�fmfodk�wabc�ca���}~�agwn�ofxuak�ofdyfofcp�fb�fgwouznz��kdghnz�ikam�q�����ca�q������aenk�jdbc�in��pndkb�_{}��bjnwfdof�nb�fg�waenkfgh�bjnwfdo�zfbckfwcb�dgz�vdb�aenk��ss�juyofw�ngcfcp�mnmynkb_{}��fb�cvn�jkaefznk�ai�cvn�edbc�md�akfcp�ai�bjnwfdo�zfbckfwcb�mdgdhnz�yp����t�}gw��������b�mdgdhnmngc�wamjdgp��dgz�����fb�nlcknmnop�jondbnz��fcv�cvnfk�oneno�ai�wubcamnk�bnkefwn�dgz�knbjagbfengnbb_{|}~�dgz���}~�za�gac�bjnwfdof�n�fg�bjnwfdo�zfbckfwcb�dgz�bcdii�vden�nljnkfngwnz�wubcamnk�bnkefwn�jkayonmb��fcv�ndwv�jkaefznk�fg�cvn�jdbc��������
��������������
������J��� �����	��	�	�9����� ��P��
��������
��	���	�
����������������������	�����
����������	����������ED>�?<A]??]�������������E����	��	
������������
����� 	�������������������������������������
	�����	����9������J�����	�������
�����
��A?�AFE]??�������������	��
��������
����̂I�;K��	����K���	�����9]
���������������

Exhibit

Page 106 of 122



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: FY22 Budget Amendment - Liability and Workers’ Compensation 

Insurance Plans Savings Allocations
Section & Item: 9.H
Department: Administration, Finance
Fiscal Impact: $ 0
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: 210928 Resolution 2021-18 Liability and WC Insurance Savings, 

08.24.2021 Liability Insurance Memo
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: NA
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Approve Resolution 2021-18, amending the budget to transfer funds to the R&M Capital Projects Department from the 
Administration, Food & Beverage, Resident Relations, Golf and Property Services Departments,
 

Background and Summary Information
On August 24th, 2021, the BOT approved the Liability and Workers’ Insurance plans and awarded the contracts that 
resulted in a budgeted savings of $30,351.00.
Allocation Table:

 
Staff recommends the BOT approve the resolution 2021-18 amending the Budget, reallocating funds to Contingency in 
the R&M/Capital Projects Department from various Departments with a zero total financial impact.

Page 107 of 122



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305 
 

  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 2021-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 2021-09; 

AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, the Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees adopted Resolution 

2021-09, an operating Budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending 
September 30, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is desirous of amending the previously adopted 

Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has ascertained that the following amendments are 

necessary to provide for the operation of the District for the Fiscal Year 2021-22: 
 

An Amendment to transfer $27,343 from the Administration Department to be added 
to the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department; 
 
An Amendment to transfer $729 from the Food &Beverage Department to be added 
to the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department; 
 
An Amendment to transfer $79 from the Resident Relations Department to be added 
to the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department; 
 
An Amendment to transfer $124 from the Golf/Proshop Department to be added to 
the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department; and 
 
An Amendment to transfer $2,076 from the Property Services Department to be 
added to the Contingency in the R&M/Capital Department. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY FLORIDA:  

 

Section 1. The amendment shall be made to the operating Budget for the Fiscal Year 
beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022. 

 

Section 2. The Community Manager and the Finance Manager are directed to adjust FY 
2021/22 Adopted Budget. 

 

Section 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ________________.  The motion 

was seconded by Trustee __________________ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote was as follows: 
 

Chairman, Michael Maino 
Trustee, Bruce Amoss 
Trustee, Jeff Grunow 

Page 108 of 122



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305 
 

  Page 2 of 2 

 

Trustee, James Nugent 
Trustee, Michael Morrissey 

 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted on this 28th day of 
September 2021. 
 BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 By:  ______________________________________ 
 Michael Maino, 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Jeff Grunow, 
 SECRETARY 

 

Page 109 of 122



�����������	
���
� ���������������������� ���������������� !�� " #���$�% &�'$�(���)�
	���*��+���,�$
-�.�/01�2�3��4� 567��8�9�4�1�� :��/��1��:�;��/01���<���04�9�-�9=/.�>/�.�;�348�.�� ?@AB�A5C65"�D>E  �F������0G�?@5!�A@!6""H<01��.�� :/.I�9���94/1��01��:��/��1��:�;��/01��J�1���9��K0I1�<0GG����<044�1/���J�1���9����.I4�1��� .048�9/�01�0G�I��;�I���1��;��1��=/�/01�8;�1���L9/1./8�;�9�1�M�;���N.�;/G�����44�9��0G�N�1�G/����1��.0=�9���:�=/�M���N��O�1�9�;�<0�1��;� PQ��8890=���N�� K0I1�R6�<0GG����3<J�S<J��<044�1/���J�1���9�+�T	�
�����*�����U(��V�-�;�.�/01�0G�748;0����W��;�I��1���1./;;�9��31��9�1.��L;�1������*X���	�������Y	����(�)����������W��;�I�31��9�1.�L�9�/./8��/1���48;0�����I�=��N��1�/1��9���G09�4��/.�;�.0=�9�����1��9�W��;�I�>/9���80;/./����/1.��Z.�0N�9� "#A�D89/09��M0�G/�.�;����9��M�9��.0=�9����1��9�[1/����W��;�I�<�9�H6������0�ZN�4�.�9��9���;��/01���01��09�409��\�GG09��N;�]�8;�1��4����N��0GG�9���MI/.I�/����G/1������10���9����9��I�1�56BC�8�9.�1��0G��1��48;0���̂��RS ���_�N;��DF0_�#H�/1.04�6��I9������9����0���I��FZ����08�����M0�\�GG09��N;�]�8;�1��/1����/�/01��0����9��/�/01�;�I��;�I�/1��9�1.��8;�16�>09�>E  ��FF:�̀��.�99�1��890=/��9�/��01;��0GG�9/1��9�1�M�;�0G�01��0G��I��\�GG09��N;�]�80;/./���MI/.I�/G���08����M/;;�a��8�FF:��/1�.048;/�1.��M/�I�ZN�4�.�9��9���;��/01�6�W��;�I�>/9���/��;��=/1���I���90�8�/1��9�1.��4�9a����1���I/��M/;;�N���I��;�������9��I�/9�80;/./����9���=�/;�N;���0�FF:�6�>0;;0M/1���9���I��8;�1���.0������1��.048�9/�01��0��I��>E  �F�����6���11��;�.0�����1����=/1�������4���;;��48;0�����.I00����I����4��8;�1�����I���.�99�1�;��I�=���1;�����I���I�=��0�I�9M/����0�/1�/.����6�ZG�10����0G��I��@b��1�/./8�����G�;;S�/4���48;0�����G09�>E  �����GG�N�;/�=���01;�� B�M/;;��;�.��.0=�9����D����4/1����.�9��/1�1�4N�9�0G�1�M��48;0������;�.��.0=�9���H6���910=�9�0G��I��9�4�/1/1��A��48;0������1�Q09�c��;/G�/1���=�1���9���;�/1��/1����/�/01�;��;�.�/01��0G�.0=�9����M0�;��/1.9�����.0�����0�FF:��N��01���I��G/��9���890=/����M/�I/1��I/�����1���4�406�ZG�10����/1�>E#b�01;��CAd�0G��;/�/N;���48;0������;�.����I��;�I�/1��9�1.��.0=�9����MI�9����890e�.����B"d�0G��;/�/N;���48;0������9���_8�.�����0��;�.��.0=�9����/1�>E  6
fghi�jkl�mn�okp

Exhibit

Page 110 of 122



����������	
����
�����������������������������������������������������������������������	��������� �!�������""�����������������#��	���	
��$�����"��$��	
����������%"����	$������	
���������$�����"��$������$��"���"	���	�"	�$�����	
��&����'$�����������$�����"��$�����(��$�����)��	
���*!������"���������������"���+��	
��,�����$	��-�������	������������$�����"������%"�������	�����������$��"������	
����'	�"�����������"�	��.��������������������������������������������������	��������� �����	��	
��$����	����	
��$�	����������������	�/$	
���������,���	�����������,���	��,���$""$����"��$�$	$���	
����������""�""���	�$�����"��������""�����������/�0	�	���$�$����/����#"$��$�$���	��������$�����"�"�����	
����'	�"$'�����"(��"	�������������"������	$���	$���$��	
�����"���������������$�����"$�������������������$������	�$+�	$��"�������11��	�)�������������������������������$�"������ �2�/������	�������""������3���������	$	$����""�$�������$	$���"��$�"3$������"3$�������������������	����"�������"	�������������"�$�����"$����������������$������	�$+�	$��"�������������	����������	������$����11 
4567�89:�;<�=9>

Exhibit

Page 111 of 122



�����������	
�����������	�
�����������
�
�����������������	�����������
�������������� ���������!	������
�"�����������
���#�������
�����	
��
�����	
����$%&��'()*'��+�������,�-�.�.,�/��('�����+�������.�.,�.0��((��1'���2�3��������������3�������45��
���6�	!���������������!���
���	�3�	������%'����
�����
�����������	��7!����
�������
����������
�	���+5������8���
�
���	����!3�������������	�����
������#��������������
9�
��!�����
����
�����#����	������������	�#���	�
����+5������������	��	
����3����#��
�������
����������������#����	�����	
���:	�	�
�	���
�����������������
��,����������!
�����	�
�����
��
������	
�	�#���	��.������	
�����������	�
����������������
���
��������
�����	!������
��,����������
�����	
����$&�&�"%���(�
����+5�;��!��<��������95=5�6�	!�������+5��!����
��������	�'����������������	!���������
�����!�
����$'������
��������!�� 
�����������
���!���,����������
5!��
�����������
��������	���	
������>!�	
��������
������>!�
���������
�������#������5!��
��	
����	�
�	���
������
��
������#����������	
�������������	
�����������	�
����������������
���
�����;��!��<��������95=5�6�	!������
��,����������
�������!�����	
����$'�')��%�� ?@AB�CDE�FG�HEI

Exhibit

Page 112 of 122



�����������	
��������		����������	��
��������
�����������������
������������
��������	�����
����
�������������	�
���������� ���
���	��������������!"�
�
	������	
�����	�����������
��������������	
��������	�����
����	������#��$��������
��
���������������#���������
��#��	��"�	�����
%����������	
��������		����������	��
��������
�����������������
������	����	�����
%����������	
�����
�#�
���	��������������!"�
�
	������	
�����	�������
	�����	����	�����
%����������	
��������	�����
��
��&�	�������������#���������
��'����
���(�������
����
���)�������%�	�����*(�)�+�����	
��������		����������	��
��������
�����������������
�������������
�������
���
�������
����
���)�������%�	�����*(�)�+�����	
�����	����	�����
��%
�������
,��
�������	
,���
�������������	�
���������� ���
���	��������������!"�
�
	������	
�������	�����
����	�����������
�������
���
�������
����
���)�������%�	�����*(�)�+�����	
����
��&�	�������������(�������
��� �������������,�
�����
	�����������������
������������
	��
�
��
%��������
�����	��,�������,���	�������-����	�����
��.������������������"�	��'���/��(��
��.��������#���������
������	
����#���
	��(�����
	��������������
������
	����������01//���,�������	�������%�����

2345�677�89�:;<

Exhibit

Page 113 of 122



���������	
�	��
������	��������������������
	����	��
�����
	��
��
�����������������������
���������	�
��
������������ �	
��� ��
	������������
!!!!!

"#$%�&'&�()�*+,

Exhibit

Page 114 of 122



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: FY22 Budget Amendment: Audio-Visual Tech Position 

Reorganization
Section & Item: 9.I
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: $0.00
Contact: Stephanie Brown, District Clerk, John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: Resolution 2021-15
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review proposed re-organization and approve Resolution 2021-15.
 

Background and Summary Information
The FY22 Approved Budget contains funding within the Property Services Department, Building Sub-Department for a 
0.11 FTE part-time Maintenance/Audio Visual Tech position. Due to the growing complexity of technology (i.e., 
livestreaming, recording of meetings, etc.), staff proposes a modest budget amendment to transfer said position to the 
Administration Department: Office of District Clerk Sub-Department who is responsible for the end product of the 
recordings. This transfer will eliminate the Property Services Manager relaying information between the District Clerk 
and the technician, thereby streamlining information flow and freeing up valuable time of the Property Services 
Manager (who is responsible for the largest department in BBRD, solicitation/management of most capital/R&M 
projects, and ad hoc requests from Trustees).
 
The proposed reorganization is detailed below:

  

Page 115 of 122



The Community Manager recommends the BOT approve the resolution #2021-15 amending the Administration and 
Property Services Departments’ FY22 Budget with a zero total financial impact.

Page 116 of 122



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305 
 

  Page 1 of 2 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING 
RESOLUTION 2021-09; AMENDING THE BUDGET. 

 
WHEREAS, the Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees adopted Resolution 

2021-09, an operating Budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending 
September 30, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is desirous of amending the previously adopted 

Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has ascertained that the following amendments are 

necessary to provide for the operation of the District for the Fiscal Year 2021-22: 
 

An Amendment to increase the FY2021-22 Administration Department Budget by 
$4,364.00 and to decrease the FY2021-22 Property Services Department Budget by 
$4,364.00. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY FLORIDA:  

 

Section 1. The amendment shall be made to the operating Budget for the Fiscal Year 
beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022. 

 
Section 2. The Community Manager and the Finance Manager are directed to adjust FY 

2021-22 Adopted Budget. 
 
Section 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ________________.  The 

motion was seconded by Trustee __________________ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote 
was as follows: 

 

Chairman, Michael R. Maino 
Trustee, Bruce Amoss 
Trustee, Michael Morrissey 
Trustee, Jeff Grunow 
Trustee, Jim Nugent 

 

 

Page 117 of 122



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305 
 

  Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted on this 
28th day of September 2021. 
 
  
 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
 
 
 By:  ______________________________________ 
 Michael R. Maino, 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 

 Jeff Grunow, 
 SECRETARY 
 

 

Page 118 of 122



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, September 28, 2021
Title: 2022 BOT and Quarterly Townhall Regular Meeting 

Schedule
Section & Item: 9.J
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments:
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Staff recommends the BOT approve the proposed dates for the regularly scheduled BOT and Quarterly 
Townhall meeting in calendar year 2022 and authorize staff to advertise them in the Florida Today.
 

Background and Summary Information
Listed below for approval are the dates for the 2021 BOT regular meetings. All meetings are still being held on the 2nd 
Friday and the 4th Tuesday of the month. Also listed are tentative Quarterly Townhall Meeting dates. Please choose one 
date from each month below for approval.

January 14, 2022                                                                                               
January 25, 2022
February 11, 2022
February 22, 2022
March 11, 2022
March 22, 2022
April 8, 2022
April 26, 2022
May 13, 2022
May 24, 2022
June 10, 2022
June 28, 2022
July 8, 2022
July 26, 2022
August 12, 2022
August 23, 2022
September 9, 2022
September 27, 2022
October 14, 2022
October 25, 2022
November 4, 2022
December 9, 2022

Tentative Quarterly Townhall Meeting Dates

(Choose one)
4/7/22 Thurs. 9am-11am
4/19/22 Tues.  7pm-9pm
4/21/22 Thurs.  9am-11am

Page 119 of 122



4/28/22 Thurs. 7pm-9pm
 

(Choose one)
7/5/22 Tues.  7pm-9pm                                                               
7/7/22 Thurs. 9am-11am                                                            
7/19/22 Tues.  7pm-9pm                                                            
7/21/22 Thurs.  9am-11am                                                        
 
(Choose one)
10/4/22 Tues.  7pm-9pm
10/6/22 Thurs. 9am-11am
10/19/22 Wed. 9am-11am
10/27/22 Thurs. 7pm-9pm         
       

Page 120 of 122



1  

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Boulevard, Administration Building 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976-9233 
 

Phone 772-664-3141 
Fax 772-664-1928 

 
 
 
 
 

Memo To: Board of Trustees 
 
From: John W. Coffey, Community Manager, ICMA-CM 
 
Date: September 28, 2021 
 
Subject: Manager’s Report 
 
 
Resident Relations 

• Information to be provided at the meeting 
 
Food & Beverage 

• Music Bingo starts in Building A on October 11th from 5:30-8:30pm.  The bar opens at 4pm and light 
meals will be available for purchase from 4-7pm. Badges or guest passes are required. 

• Karaoke will move from Thursday to Tuesday night beginning Tuesday, October 5th from 5-1pm. 
 
Great October events.  Save the dates! 

• Saturday October 2, 2021 
o The German Club, Paradise Planners, and BBRD are holding an Oktoberfest in the Pool #1 area 

starting at noon.  
o An International Polka Band will perform on the Lakeside Stage from 12:30-4pm.   
o Paradise Planners will transform the area into a fairy tale German village.   
o Kegs of Warsteiner beer, a favorite of our Barefoot Bay German Club residents, will be flowing as 

well as brats, German potato salad, hot dogs, big pretzels, and more.   
o Tickets and/or badges are not required for this event.   
 

• October 16, 2021 
o This year’s annual walk for cancer is themed “Color My World Cancer Free” and is a fundraiser for 

all cancers.   
o The walk will be held under the oaks by the New Administration Building at 9am.  Sign up is going 

on now in the CVO office.   
o There will be music, a special drink menu, snacks and activities in the Pavilion area after the walk.  

BBRD Departments have a friendly competition to see who can raise the most funds for the 
charity.  While the District collectively raised over $5,000 of the $14,000 raised for the Sea of Pink 
cause in 2019, the Administration team beat out the other Departments by raising over $4,000.  
We’ll see which Department can raise the bar this year.   

 
 

Page 121 of 122



2  

• October 30, 2021 
o BBRD’s annual Halloween party will be Lakeside of the Lounge.  Get into a freaky costume to win a 

prize for best costume and dance to the beats of TC & Sass from 7-10:30pm.  
 

Winter Beats Series  

• Tickets will go on sale Monday, November 1st in Building A (not the Administration Building) at 9am 
for the first 2 shows in the Winter Beats series.  
o  Simply Tina is a Tina Turner tribute band that will perform on Saturday, January 15th and tickets 

are $25. 
o Dueling Pianos will perform on Saturday, January 29th and tickets are $20.   
 

Property Services 

• Rototilled, rolled and killed weeds in the walking path 

• Installed electric for new ice machine behind the bar in Building A 

• Replaced rotten timbers around the smoking area at Pool #3 

• Replaced all the flags on the Veterans flagpole at the Shopping Center  

• Replaced exhaust fan in the restroom at the Pro Shop 

• Began the refurbishment of the men’s room in Bldg. D/E 

• Continued installing bollards and rope line along Hawthorn Circle 

• Touched up the paint in the Building A men’s restroom 

• Repainted the facia on the restrooms at the Softball Field 

• Repainted the Veterans Memorial Eagle and cleaned up area  

• Set-up and tore down for the 9/11 service  

• Continued to solicit bids for upcoming projects 
 
Golf-Pro Shop 

• Golf Membership renewals begin October 1st 

o You may pick up applications at the Pro Shop 

o Please call Pro Shop for if you have any questions (772.664.3174) 

• End of Fiscal Year Inventory 

o Merchandise sales inside the Pro Shop will cease at 12pm on September 30th for annual BBRD 
inventory management 

 

General Information 

o No signs on the Media Reminder – Residents are reminded that snipe signs (i.e. typically yard sales or 

political signs) are not allowed on the median in the middle of Barefoot Blvd. Although said median is 

within the Brevard County right-of-way, multiple historic agreements between Brevard County and 

BBRD, grant BBRD maintenance responsibility. 

• RFP Evaluation Committee Meetings Reminder 

o Golf Course Lake Bank RFP Eval. Comm.  

➢ Mon., Sept. 27th, Admin. Conf. Room at 1pm 

➢ Mon., Oct. 4th, Admin. Conf. Room at 2pm (if needed) 

o Bldg. A Retaining Wall RFP Eval. Comm. Mtg:  

➢ Mon., Oct. 4th, Admin. Conf. Room at 1pm 

➢ Mon., Oct. 11th, Admin. Conf. Room at 1pm (if needed) 

 

Page 122 of 122


	1. Thought of the Day
	2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
	3. Roll Call
	4. Presentations and Proclamations
	5. Approval of Minutes
	A. Minutes dated September 10, 2021
	09.10.2021


	6. Treasurer’s Report
	A. Treasurer’s Report
	Treasurers BOT Meeting Report 210928


	7. Audience Participation
	8. Unfinished Business
	A. Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions
	Agenda Memo

	B. Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease
	Agenda Memo
	Draft Ground Lease Agreement BBRD and Steward Medical Group
	Exhibit A Legal Description for Ground Lease with Parcel Sketch
	Exhibit B Conceptual Site Plan Steward Medical Group Land Lease
	Executed LOI December 3, 2020 Ground Lease Steward Medical Group-BBRD


	9. New Business
	A. Rules for the BOT Amendment
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution Amendment to Rules for Board of Trustees
	Rules for the BOT proposed revision 28Sep21

	B. ADA Lifts for Pools Proposal
	Agenda Memo
	Family Pools proposal
	email from Comm. Mgr. to Trustees
	2011 Memo to Trustees on ADA requirements for BBRD pool facilities

	C. Building A Renovations Project: Change Order #14 C
	Agenda Memo
	Bldg A Renovations Change Order tracker
	signed change order 14

	D. Lease Agreement with Brevard County (Utility Servi
	Agenda Memo
	9030216 Brevard Cnty Water Executed 2016 lease

	E. FY21 Budget Amendment - Change Order 13 to the Bui
	Agenda Memo
	210514 Resolution 2021-19 - Change Order 13 to the Building A Renovation Project
	09.10.2021 Building A Renovations Project Change Order 13 Memo

	F. FY21 Budget Amendment - Restroom Trailer by Pickle
	Agenda Memo
	210514 Resolution 2021-20 - Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball and Tennis Courts
	09.10.2021 Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball-Tennis Courts

	G. FY22 Budget Amendment - Employee Health and Ancill
	Agenda Memo
	210928 Resolution 2021-17 Health Insurance Savings
	08.24.2021 Health Insurance Memo

	H. FY22 Budget Amendment - Liability and Workers’ Com
	Agenda Memo
	210928 Resolution 2021-18 Liability and WC Insurance Savings
	08.24.2021 Liability Insurance Memo

	I. FY22 Budget Amendment: Audio-Visual Tech Position 
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution 2021-15

	J. 2022 BOT and Quarterly Townhall Regular Meeting Sc
	Agenda Memo


	10.  Manager’s Report
	A. Sept. 28, 2021 Comm. Mgr. Report
	Mgr report 28Sep21


	11. Attorney’s Report
	12. Incidental Trustee Remarks
	13. Adjournment



